City of San Diego

CONTRACTOR'S NAME:

ADDRESS: TELEPHONE NO.:

FAX NO.:

CITY CONTACT: Damian Singleton- Contract Specialist, Email: DSingleton@sandiego.gov. Phone No. (619) 235-5272, Fax No. (619) 236-5904

JWinter/NB/RIR

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS



FOR

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS

VOLUME 1 OF 2

BID NO.:	K-13-5759-DBB-1-A
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	12003890
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	1714
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	CITYWIDE
PROJECT TYPE:	GF
CDBG #:	B-11-MC-06-0542

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

> FEDERAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS

> PREVAILING WAGE RATES: FEDERAL

> APPRENTICE REQUIREMENTS

THIS IS A CDBG-FUNDED CONTRACT THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

BID DUE DATE:

2:00PM NOVEMBER 27, 2012 CITY OF SAN DIEGO PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 1200 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 200, MS 56P SAN DIEGO, CA 92101

ENGINEER OF WORK

The engineering Specifications and Special Provisions contained herein have been prepared by or under the direction of the following Registered Engineer:



10/16/12 For City Engineer Date Seal:

Bid No.: K-13-5759-DBB-1-A Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DESCRIPTION

1.	REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE	4-5
2.	DBE SPECIAL NOTICE.	
3.	INVITATION TO BIDS	
4.	INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS	11-18
5.	FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS	
	• Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure EEO (Executive Order 1)	1246) 19
	Nondiscrimination Provisions for Federally Assisted Construction Contracts	
	Equal Opportunity Clauses	
	Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications	
	Violation or Breach of Requirements	
	Monthly Employment Utilization Reports	
	Records of Payments to DBE	
	Federal Wage Requirements for Federally Funded Projects	
	• State Requirements for Contracts Subject To State Prevailing Wage Requirements	25
	• Wage Rates	
	• Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968	
	Federal Labor Standards Provisions	
	Agency Specific Provisions	
	DBE Potential Resources Centers	
	Good Faith Effort Documentation Submittals	
	• Forms	
	Attachments	
	Funding Agency Provisions – Attachments	
	Form AA61 - List of Work Made Available	
	Form AA62 - Summary of Bids Received	
	Form AA63 - Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited	
6.	CONTRACT FORMS	
	Agreement/Contract	
	Performance Bond and Labor and Materialmen's Bond	
7.	CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION	
	Drug-Free Workplace	
	American with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance	
	Contractor Standards - Pledge of Compliance	
	Affidavit of Disposal	
8.	SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS	
9.	TECHNICALS.	
10.	APPENDICES:	
	APPENDIX A NEPA/Environmental Document	
	APPENDIX B Sample City Invoice	

PAGE NUMBER

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE

The Bidder's attention is directed to the City's Municipal Code §22.0807(e), (3)-(5) for important information regarding grounds for debarment for failure to submit required documentation.

The specified Equal Opportunity Contracting Program (EOCP) forms are available for download from the City's web site at: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/forms/index.shtml</u>

ITEM	WHEN	BY	WHAT
1.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Proposal (Bid)
2.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Bid Bond
3.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Non-collusion Affidavit to be Executed By Bidder and Submitted with Bid under 23 USC 112 and PCC 7106
4.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Contractors Certification of Pending Actions
5.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification of Compliance
6.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Non-Lobbying Certification
7.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure
8.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Instructions for Completion of SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
9.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities
10.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA35 - List of Subcontractors
11.	BID DUE DATE/TIME	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA40 - Named Equipment/Material Supplier List
12.	WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Federal Good Faith Documentations
13.	WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Proof of Valid DBE-MBE-WBE-DVBE Certification Status e.g., Certs.
14.	WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA61 – List of Work Made Available
15.	WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA62 – Summary of Bids Received
16.	WITHIN 4 WORKING DAYS OF BID OPENING WITH GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTS	ALL BIDDERS	Form AA63 Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited
17.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Names of the principle individual owners of the Apparent Low Bidder - In the event the firm is employee owned or publicly held, then the fact should be stated and the names

REQUIRED DOCUMENTS SCHEDULE

ITEM	WHEN	BY	WHAT
			of the firm's principals and officers shall be provided.
18.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	If the Contractor is a Joint Venture, the following information must be submitted: o Joint Venture Agreement o Joint Venture License
19.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Form BB05 - Work Force Report
20.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contract Forms - Agreement
21.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contract Forms - Payment and Performance Bond
22.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements
23.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractor Certification - Drug-Free Workplace
24.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractor Certification - American with Disabilities Act
25.	WITHIN 10 WORKING DAYS AFTER RECEIPT BY BIDDER OF CONTRACT FORMS	APPARENT LOW BIDDER	Contractors Standards - Pledge of Compliance
26.	BY 5th OF EACH MONTH	CONTRACTOR	Form CC20 - Monthly Employment Report
27.	BY 5th OF EACH MONTH	CONTRACTOR	Form CC25 - Monthly Invoicing Report
28.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Form CC10 - Contract Change Order (CCO)
29.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Form CC15 - Final Summary Report
30.	PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE	CONTRACTOR	Affidavit of Disposal

SPECIAL NOTICE DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (DBE)

- **1. INTRODUCTION.** The City affirms that in any contract entered into pursuant to this advertisement, DBE will be afforded full opportunity to submit Bids in response to this invitation.
 - **1.1.** This Federally assisted project includes subcontracting participation percentages for DBE participation. DBE goal commitments and Good Faith Efforts (GFE) shall be made prior to bidding. DBE commitments and GFE made after the Bid opening will not be considered for the Award of Contract.
 - **1.2.** The Bidder's attention is directed to the following:
 - i. City of San Diego's General Equal Opportunity Contracting Program incorporated in the "WHITEBOOK" which applies to <u>all</u> construction contracts except as amended in these specifications and specified in the "FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS" incorporated in the Contract Documents.
 - ii. Required Documents Schedule for submittals.

2. AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY'S STANDARD EOCP REQUIREMENTS.

- **III. Equal Employment Opportunity Outreach Program (A).** DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:
 - A. Competitive Bids. If a contract is competitively solicited, the Apparent Low Bidder shall submit a *Work Force Report (Form BB05)* or an Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Plan, within 10 Working Days after receipt by the Bidder of Contract forms to the City for approval as specified in the Notice of Intent to Award letter from the City.
- **IX. Definitions.** ADD the following for the purpose of these specifications:

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) are:

- A. Entities owned and/or controlled by a socially and economically disadvantaged individuals as described by Title X of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 7601 note) (10% statute), and Public Law 102-389 (42 U.S.C. 4370d) (8% statute), respectively
- B. Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) Zone Small Business Concern (or a concern under a successor program)
- C. Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB)
- D. Women-Owned Business (WoSB)
- E. Service Disabled Veteran-owned Small Business (SDVoSB)

For the purpose of these requirements terms "Bid" and "Proposal," "Bidder" and "Proposer," "Subcontractor" and "Subconsultant," "Contractor" and "Consultant," "Contractor" and "Prime Contractor," "Consultant" and "Professional Service Provider," "Suppliers" and "Vendors," "Suppliers" and Dealers," and "Suppliers" and "Manufacturers" may have been used interchangeably.

XI. Suppliers. Last paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

For the purpose of achieving the mandatory subcontractor participation percentage, the City will not account for the Field Orders, Additive or Deductive, and Allowance Bid Items (when shown by the City as Allowance – Type II in the Bid and Proposal forms) in the calculation. Allowance – Type I Bid Items are part of the Base Bid integral to the SOW.

ADD:

- **XIII.** Federal Equal Opportunity Requirements. All federally funded projects are subject to the federal equal opportunity regulations and the following requirements. The City reserves the right to audit Contractor's compliance with the federal requirements set forth below.
- 3. SUBCONTRACTING PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES. Following are federally subcontracting participation percentages for this contract. For the purpose of achieving the mandatory subcontractor participation percentage, the City will not account for the Field Orders, Additive or Deductive, and Allowance Bid Items (when shown by the City as Allowance Type II in the Bid and Proposal forms) in the calculation. Allowance Type I Bid Items are part of the Base Bid integral to the SOW.

3.1. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD):

1.	Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB):	5%
		0,0

- 2. Women-Owned Small Business (WoSB): 5%
- 3. HUBZone Small Business (HubZone): 3%
- 4. Service Disabled Veteran-owned Small Business (SDVoSB): 3%
- 4. **PRE-BID CONFERENCE.** A mandatory Pre-Bid Conference is scheduled for this project as specified in the Invitation to Bids. The purpose of this meeting is to inform prospective Bidder(s) of the submittal requirements and provisions relative to the City requirements.
- **5. MANDATORY CONDITIONS.** Bid will be declared **non-responsive** if the Bidder fails any of the following conditions:
 - 5.1. Submission of GFE documentation, as specified in the Special Provisions.
 - **5.2.** Attending the Pre-Bid Conference.
 - 5.3. Bidder's submission of GFE documentation demonstrating the Bidder made a good faith effort to outreach to and include DBE Subcontractors shall be submitted within 4 Working Days of the Bid opening.

CITY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA

INVITATION TO BIDS

- 1. **RECEIPT AND OPENING OF BIDS:** Bids will be received at the Public Works Contracting Group at the location, time, and date shown on the cover of these specifications for performing work on **Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement Three Locations** (Project).
- 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK: The Work involves furnishing all labor, materials, equipment, services, and other incidental works and appurtenances for the construction of the Project as described below:

This project replaces the full gymnasium wood floors at North Park, Encanto and Colina del Sol recreation centers. The project includes demolition and disposal of the existing wood flooring and baseboards, replacement of door thresholds as needed, prepration of the existing subfloor, all materials, installation of the new wood floors, painting game court stripes and final floor finishing. It also includes the installation of new game post sleeves and cove baseboards.

The Work shall be performed in accordance with:

- Bid No. <u>K-13-5759-DBB-1-A</u>, inclusive.
- **3. ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE:** The Engineer's estimate of the most probable price for this contract is **\$223,400**.
- 4. LOCATION OF WORK: The location of Work is as follows:

North Park Recreation Center 4044 Idaho St. San Diego, CA 92104

Colina del Sol Recreation Center 5319 Orange Ave. San Diego, CA 92115

Encanto Recreation Center 6508 Wunderlin Ave. San Diego, CA 92114

- 5. CONTRACT TIME: The Contract Time for completion of the Work shall be 90 Working Days
- 6. CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE CLASSIFICATION: In accordance with the provisions of California Law, the Contractor shall possess valid appropriate license(s) at the time that the Bid is submitted. Failure to possess the specified license(s) shall render the Bid as **non-responsive** and shall act as a bar to award of the Contract to any Bidder not possessing required license(s) at the time of Bid.

Option	Classification(s)
1	CLASS B
2	CLASS C15

The City has determined the following licensing classification(s) for this contract:

The Bidder shall satisfy the licensing requirement by meeting <u>at least</u> one of the listed options.

7. **PRE-BID CONFERENCE:** There will be a Pre-Bid Conference to discuss the scope of the Project, bidding requirements, and Equal Opportunity Contracting Program requirements and reporting procedures in the Public Works Contracting Group, Conference Room at 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92101 at 10:00 AM, on NOVEMBER 07, 2012.

The Pre-Bid Conference has been designated as MANDATORY. All potential bidders are required to attend. Bid will be declared non-responsive if the Bidder fails to attend the Pre-Bid Conference when specified to be mandatory. Attendance at the Pre-Bid Conference will be evidenced by the representative's signature on the attendance roster. It shall be the responsibility of the Bidder's representative to complete and sign the attendance roster. No Bidder will be admitted after the official start time of the mandatory Pre-Bid Conference.

To request a copy of the agenda on an alternative format, or to request a sign language or oral interpreter for this meeting, call the Public Works Contracting Group at (619)236-6000 at least 5 Working Days prior to the Pre-Bid Conference to ensure availability.

8. **REFERENCE STANDARDS:** Except as otherwise noted or specified, the Work shall be completed in accordance with the following standards:

Document No.	Filed	Description
PITS0504091	05-04-09	Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The GREENBOOK), 2009 Edition
PITS090110-1	09-01-10	City of San Diego Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (The WHITEBOOK), 2010 Update *
AEC1231064	12-31-06	California Department of Transportation, Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD 2006)
769023	09-11-84	Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications and the Equal Opportunity Clause

1. STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

NOTE: The City of San Diego Supplement, 2010 Update now consolidates various City Public Works Construction Standard Specifications which in the past were included in the Supplementary Special Provisions. The Bidders' attention is directed to this edition of the City Supplement for a close review to ensure no important information is missed for the preparation of the Bids.

2. STANDARD DRAWINGS

Document No.	Filed	Description
AEC1230163	12-31-06	City of San Diego Standard Drawings*
N/A	Varies	City Standard Drawings - Updates Approved For Use *
AEC0925061	09-25-06	Caltrans 2006 U.S. Customary Unit Standard Plans

NOTE: *Available online under Engineering Documents and References at: http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip.

9. WAGE RATES: Prevailing wages are not applicable to this project <u>unless specified otherwise</u> on the cover page of these specifications and when included in these specifications. See Funding Agency Provisions that follow this Invitation to Bid for more information.

Tony Heinrichs, Director Public Works Department

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

1. **PREQUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS:** The contractor(s) who intend to submit Bid or Proposal in response to this invitation to bid, or RFP's for GRC or As-Needed Design-Build Task Orders valued over \$50,000, must be pre-qualified for the total amount proposed, inclusive of all alternate bid items or the specified Task Order limits prior to the date of Bid submittal.

Bids from contractors who have not been pre-qualified as applicable, and Bids that exceed the maximum dollar amount at which contractors are pre-qualified, will be deemed **non-responsive** and ineligible for award or a Task Order authorization. Complete information and prequalification questionnaires are available at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip/services/consultcontract/prequal.shtml

The completed questionnaire, financial statement, and bond letter or a copy of the contractor's SLBE-ELBE certification and bond letter, must be submitted no later than 2 weeks prior to the bid opening to the Public Works Department – Engineering and Capital Projects Prequalification Program, 1010 Second Avenue, Suite 1200, San Diego, CA 92101. For additional information or the answer to questions about the prequalification program, please contact David Stucky at 619-533-3474 or dstucky@sandiego.gov.

- **2. CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION:** Prospective bidder(s) as well as existing contractors and suppliers are required to register with the City's EOCP. Refer to 2-17, "CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION" for details.
- **3. CITY'S RESPONSES AND ADDENDA:** The City at its option, may respond to any or all questions submitted in writing, via letter, or FAX in the form of an addendum. No oral comment shall be of any force or effect with respect to this solicitation. The changes to the Contract Documents through addendum are made effective as though originally issued with the Bid. The Bidders shall acknowledge the receipt of Addenda on the form provided for this purpose in the Bid.
- 4. CITY'S RIGHTS RESERVED: The City reserves the right to cancel the Invitation to Bids at any time, and further reserves the right to reject submitted Bids, without giving any reason for such action, at its sole discretion and without liability. Costs incurred by the Bidder(s) as a result of preparing Bids under the Invitation to Bid shall be the sole responsibility of each bidder. The Invitation to Bid creates or imposes no obligation upon the City to enter a contract.
- **5. CONTRACT PRICING FORMAT:** This solicitation is for a Lump Sum contract with Unit Price provisions as set forth in the Bid Proposal Form(s), Volume 2 unless specified otherwise such as as-needed contracts e.g., GRC in the Contract Documents.
- 6. SUBMITTAL OF "OR EQUAL" ITEMS: See 4-1.6, "Trade Names or Equals."
- 7. AWARD PROCESS: The Award of this contract is contingent upon the Contractor's compliance with all conditions precedent to Award, including the submittal of acceptable insurance and surety bonds pursuant to San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3007. If the responsible Bid does not exceed the City's engineering estimate, the City will, in most cases, prepare contract documents for execution within 3 weeks of the date of the Bid opening and award the Contract within 5 Working Days of receipt of properly executed Contract, bond, and insurance documents.

This contract is deemed to be awarded, and effective, only upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or designee of the City.

- **8. SUBCONTRACT LIMITATIONS:** The Bidder's attention is directed to Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Section 2-3, "SUBCONTRACTS" which requires the Contractor to perform not less than the amount therein stipulated with its own forces. Failure to comply with these requirements may render the Bid **non-responsive** and ineligible for award.
- **9. AVAILABILITY OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:** Contract Documents may be obtained by visiting the City's website: <u>http://www.sandiego.gov/engineering-cip/services/consultcontract/advertising.shtml</u>. Plans and Specifications for this contract are also available for review in the office of the City Clerk or Public Works Contracting Group.

10. QUESTIONS:

The Director (or designee), of the Public Works Department is the officer responsible for opening, examining, and evaluating the competitive Bids submitted to the City for the acquisition, construction and completion of any public improvement except when otherwise set forth in these documents. All questions related to this procurement action shall be addressed to the Public Works Contracting Group, Attention Contract Specialist, 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, California, 92101, and Telephone No. (619) 236-6000.

Questions received less than 14 days prior to the date for opening of Bids may not be answered.

Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the City in response to such questions will be issued by Addenda which will be uploaded to the City's online bidding service.

Only questions answered by formal written addenda will be binding. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. It is the Bidder's responsibility to become informed of any Addenda that have been issued and to include all such information in its Bid.

- **11. ELIGIBLE BIDDERS:** No person, firm, or corporation shall be allowed to make, file, or be interested in **more** than one (1) Bid for the same work unless alternate Bids are called for. A person, firm or corporation who has submitted a sub-proposal to a Bidder, or who has quoted prices on materials to a Bidder, is not hereby disqualified from submitting a sub-proposal or quoting prices to other Bidders or from submitting a Bid in its own behalf. Any Bidder who submits more than one bid will result in the rejection of all bids submitted.
- 12. SAN DIEGO BUSINESS TAX CERTIFICATE: The Contractor and Subcontractors, not already having a City of San Diego Business Tax Certificate for the work contemplated shall secure the appropriate certificate from the City Treasurer, Civic Center Plaza, first floor and submit to the Contract Specialist upon request or as specified in the Contract Documents. Tax Identification numbers for both the Bidder and the listed Subcontractors must be submitted on the City provided forms with the Notice Inviting Bids and Contract forms.
- **13. PROPOSAL FORMS:** Bid shall be made only upon the Bidding Documents i.e., Proposal form attached to and forming a part of the specifications. The signature of each person signing shall be in longhand.

The entire specifications for the bid package do not need to be submitted with the bid. Bidder shall complete and submit, only, all pages in the "Bidding Document" Section (see Volume 2) as their Bid per the schedule given under "Required Documents Schedule," (see Volume 1). Bidder is requested to retain for their reference other portions of the Contract Documents that are not required to be submitted with the Bid.

The City may require any Bidder to furnish a statement of experience, financial responsibility, technical ability, equipment, and references.

Bids and certain other specified forms and documents shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and shall bear the title of the work and name of the Bidder and the appropriate State Contractors License designation which the Bidder holds.

Bids may be withdrawn by the Bidder prior to, but not after, the time fixed for opening of Bids.

14. BIDDERS' GUARANTEE OF GOOD FAITH (BID SECURITY): With the exception of the contracts valued \$5,000 or less, GRC and Design-Build contracts, and contracts subject to the Small and Local Business Program of \$250,000 or less e.g., ELBE contracts, each Bidder shall accompany its Bid with either a cashier's check upon some responsible bank, or a check upon such bank properly certified or an approved corporate surety bond payable to the City of San Diego, for an amount of not less than 10% of the aggregate sum of the Bid, which check or bond, and the monies represented thereby shall be held by the City as a guarantee that the Bidder, if awarded the contract, will in good faith enter into such contract and furnish the required final bonds.

The Bidder agrees that in case of Bidder's refusal or failure to execute this contract and give required final bonds, the money represented by a cashier's or certified check shall remain the property of the City, and if the Bidder shall fail to execute this contract, the Surety agrees that it will pay to the City damages which the City may suffer by reason of such failure, not exceeding the sum of 10% of the amount of the Bid.

A Bid received without the specified bid security will be rejected as being **non-responsive**.

15. AWARD OF CONTRACT OR REJECTION OF BIDS: This contract may be awarded to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder (for Design-Build contracts refer to the RFP for the selection and award information). Bidders shall complete the entire Bid schedule (e.g., schedule of prices). Incomplete price schedules will be rejected as being **non-responsive**.

The City reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, and to waive any informality or technicality in Bids received and any requirements of these specifications as to bidding procedure.

Bidders will not be released on account of their errors of judgment. Bidders may be released only upon receipt by the City from the Bidder within 3 Working Days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and state holidays, after the opening of Bids, of written notice which includes proof of honest, credible, clerical error of material nature, free from fraud or fraudulent intent, and of evidence that reasonable care was observed in the preparation of the Bid.

A non-selected Bidder may protest award of the Contract to the selected Bidder by submitting a written "Notice of Intent to Protest" including supporting documentation which shall be received by Public Works Contracting Group no later than 10 days after the City's announcement of the selected Bidder or no later than 10 days from the date that the City issues notice of designation of a Bidder as non-responsible in accordance with San Diego Municipal Code Chapter 2, § 22.3029, "Protests of Contract Award."

The City of San Diego will not discriminate with regard to race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical handicap, marital status, sex or age, in the award of contracts.

Each Bid package properly executed as required by these specifications shall constitute a firm offer, which may be accepted by the City within the time specified in the Invitation to Bids.

The City reserves the right to evaluate all Bids and determine the lowest Bidder (or winner for Design-Build contracts) on the basis of any proposed alternates, additive items or options, at its discretion.

16. BID RESULTS: The Bid opening by the City shall constitute the public announcement of the Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts). In the event that the Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts) is subsequently deemed non-responsive or non-responsible, a public announcement will be posted in the City's web page, with the name of the newly designated Apparent Low Bidder (or Apparent Winner in case of Design-Build contracts).

To obtain Bid results, either attend Bid opening, review the results on the City's web site, or provide a self-addressed, stamped envelope, referencing Bid number, and Bid tabulation will be mailed to you upon verification of extensions. Due to time constraints, Bid results cannot be given out over the telephone.

17. THE CONTRACT: The Bidder to whom award is made shall execute a written contract with the City of San Diego and furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 10 Working Days after receipt by Bidder of a form of contract for execution unless an extension of time is granted to the Bidder in writing.

If the Bidder takes longer than 10 Working Days to fulfill these requirements, then the additional time taken shall be added to the Bid guarantee. The Contract shall be made in the form adopted by the City, which includes the provision that no claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.

If the Bidder to whom the award is made fails to enter into the contract as herein provided, the award may be annulled and the Bidder's Guarantee of Good Faith will be subject to forfeiture. An award may be made to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder who shall fulfill every stipulation embraced herein as if it were the party to whom the first award was made.

For contracts that are not Design-Build, pursuant to the San Diego City Charter section 94, the City may only award a public works contract to the lowest responsible and reliable Bidder. The City will require the Apparent Low Bidder to (i) submit information to determine the Bidder's responsibility and reliability, (ii) execute the Contract in form provided by the City, and (iii) furnish good and approved bonds and insurance certificates specified by the City within 10 Working Days, unless otherwise approved by the City, in writing after the Bidder receives notification from the City, designating the Bidder as the Apparent Low Bidder and formally requesting the above mentioned items.

The award of the Contract is contingent upon the satisfactory completion of the above mentioned items and becomes effective upon the signing of the Contract by the Mayor or designee. If the Apparent Low Bidder does not execute the Contract or submit required documents and information, the City may award the Contract to the next lowest responsible and reliable Bidder

who shall fulfill every condition precedent to award. A corporation designated as the Apparent Low Bidder shall furnish evidence of its corporate existence and evidence that the officer signing the Contract and bond for the corporation is duly authorized to do so.

18. EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE OF WORK: The Bidder shall examine carefully the Project Site, the Plans and Specifications, the GRC Unit Price Books if applicable, other materials as described in the Special Provisions, Section 2-7, and the proposal forms (e.g., Bidding Documents) therefore. The submission of a Bid or GRC Task Order Proposal shall be conclusive evidence that the Bidder has investigated and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered, as to the character, quality, and scope of Work, the quantities of materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the Bidding Documents Proposal, Plans, and Specifications.

19. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE:

a) General:

City projects are subject to City of San Diego Resolution No. R-277952 adopted on May 20, 1991. Bidders shall become aware of the provisions of Council Policy 100-17 which was established by Resolution No. R-277952. The policy applies equally to the Contractor and Subcontractors. The elements of the policy are outlined below.

b) Definitions:

"Drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a contract let by City of San Diego for the construction, maintenance, or repair of any facility or public work by an entity at which employees of the entity are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in accordance with the requirements of this section.

"Employee" means the employee of a contractor directly engaged in the performance of work pursuant to a contract as described in Section 3, "City Contractor Requirements."

"Controlled substance" means a controlled substance in schedules I through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. Sec. 812).

"Contractor" means the department, division, or other unit of a person or organization responsible to the contractor for the performance of a portion of the work under the contract.

c) City Contractor Requirements:

Every person or organization awarded a contract or grant by the City of San Diego for the provision of services shall certify to the City that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all following:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person's organization's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition.

- b. Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following:
 - i. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
 - ii. The person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
 - iii. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs.
 - iv. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.
- c. Posting the statement required by subdivision (1) in a prominent place at contractor's main office. For projects large enough to necessitate a construction trailer at the job site, the required signage would also be posted at the Site.

The Contractor shall include in each subcontract agreement language which indicates the Subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions a) through c) above. The Contractors and Subcontractors shall be individually responsible for their own drug-free workplace programs.

Note: The requirements of a drug-free awareness program can be satisfied by periodic tailgate sessions covering the various aspects of drug-abuse education. Although an in-house employee assistance program is not required, contractors should be able to provide a listing of drug rehabilitation and counseling programs available in the community at large.

Questions about the City's Drug-free Workplace Policy shall be referred to the Contract Specialist, Public Works Contracting Group.

20. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:

- a) General: City projects are subject to City of San Diego Resolution No. R-282153 adopted on June 14, 1993. The Bidders shall become aware of the provisions of Council Policy 100-04 which was established by Resolution No. R-282153. The policy applies equally to the Contractor and all Subcontractors. The elements of the policy are outlined below.
- b) Definitions:

"Qualified individual with a disability" means an individual with a disability who satisfies the requisite skill, experience, education and other job-related requirements of the employment position such individual holds or desires, and who, with or without reasonable accommodation, can perform the essential functions of such position.

"Employee" means the employee of the Contractor directly engaged in the performance of Work.

c) The City Requirements: Every person or organization entering into a contractual agreement with or receiving a grant from the City of San Diego shall certify to the City of San Diego that it will comply with the ADA by adhering to all of the provisions of the ADA listed below.

- i. The Contractor shall not discriminate against qualified persons with disabilities in any aspects of employment, including recruitment, hiring, promotions, conditions and privileges of employment, training, compensation, benefits, discipline, layoffs, and termination of employment.
- ii. No qualified individual with a disability may be excluded on the basis of disability, from participation in, or be denied the benefits of services, programs, or activities by the Contractor or Subcontractors providing services for the City.
- iii. The Contractor shall post a statement addressing the requirements of the ADA in a prominent place at the worksite. The Contractor shall include in each subcontract agreement, language which indicates the Subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions (a) through (c) inclusive of Section 3. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall be individually responsible for their own ADA employment programs. Questions about the City's ADA Policy should be referred to the Contract Administrator.
- 21. CONTRACTOR STANDARDS PLEDGE OF COMPLIANCE: This contract is subject to City of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224 as amended 11/24/08 by ordinance O-19808. Bidders shall become aware that the requirements apply to Contractors and Subcontractors for contracts greater than \$50,000 in value.

Upon award, amendment, renewal, or extension of this contract, the Contractors shall complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that they complied with the requirements of this section.

The Contractors shall ensure that their Subcontractors whose subcontracts are greater than \$50,000 in value complete a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury that they complied with the requirements of this section. Subcontractors may access the Pledge of Compliance at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/pdf/contractor_standards_questionnaire.pdf.

The Contractors shall include in each subcontract agreement, language which requires Subcontractors to abide by the provisions of City of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224. A sample provision is as follows:

"Compliance with San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224: Subcontractor acknowledges that it is familiar with the requirements of San Diego Municipal Code §22.3224 ("Contractor Standards"), and agrees to comply with requirements of that section. The Subcontractor further agrees to complete the Pledge of Compliance, incorporated herein by reference."

22. NOTICE OF LABOR COMPLIANCE PROGRAM APPROVAL: The City of San Diego received initial approval as a Labor Compliance Program on August 11, 2003. The Labor Compliance Program Manual is available at:

http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/laborcompliance/#manual.

The limited exemption from prevailing wages pursuant to Labor Code §1771.5(a) does not apply to contracts under jurisdiction of the Labor Compliance Program. Inquiries, questions, or assistance about the Labor Compliance Program should be directed to: Equal Opportunity Contracting Program, 1200 Third Ave., Suite 200 MS56P, San Diego, CA 92101, Tel. 619-236-6000.

23. PAYROLL RECORDS: The Contractor's attention is directed to the City of San Diego Labor Compliance Program, Section IV, pages 4-7, and the State of California Labor Code §§ 1771.5(b) and 1776 (Stats. 1978, Ch. 1249). These require, in part, that the Contractor and Subcontractors maintain and furnish to the City, at a designated time, a certified copy of each weekly payroll containing a statement of compliance signed under penalty of perjury.

The Contractor and Subcontractors shall submit weekly certified payrolls online via Prism® i.e., the City's web-based labor compliance program. Instructions on how to use the system will be provided to the Contractor after the award.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the compliance with these provisions by Subcontractors. The City shall withhold contract payments when payroll records are delinquent or inadequate, or when it is established after investigation that underpayment has occurred.

- 24. APPRENTICES ON PUBLIC WORKS: The Contractor shall abide by the requirements of §§1777.5, 1777.6, and 1777.7 of the State of California Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices by contractors and subcontractors performing public works contracts.
- **25. EQUAL BENEFITS:** This contract is subject to the City's Equal Benefits Ordinance (EBO), Chapter 2, Article 2, Division 43 of the San Diego Municipal Code (SDMC).

In accordance with the EBO, Bidders shall certify they will provide and maintain equal benefits as defined in SDMC §22.4302 for the duration of the Contract (SDMC §22.4304(f)). Failure to maintain equal benefits is a material breach of the Contract (SDMC §22.4304(e)). The Contractor shall notify employees of their equal benefits policy at the time of hire and during open enrollment periods and shall post a copy of the following statement in an area frequented by employees:

"During the performance of a contract with the City of San Diego, this employer will provide equal benefits to its employees with spouses and its employees with domestic partners."

The Contractor shall give the City access to documents and records sufficient for the City to verify the contractors are providing equal benefits and otherwise complying with EBO requirements.

Full text of the EBO and the Rules Implementing the Equal Benefits Ordinance are posted on the City's website at www.sandiego.gov/purchasing/ or can be requested from the Equal Benefits Program at (619) 533-3948.

26. PRE-AWARD ACTIVITIES:

<u>Pre-award Submittals</u> - The Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) shall provide the information required within the time specified in "Required Documents," of this bid package. Failure to provide the information within the time specified may result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive**.

If the Bid is rejected as non-responsive, the Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) shall forfeit the Bid Security required under Invitation to Bids, of this bid package. The decision that the Apparent Low Bidder (or winner in case of Design-Build contracts) is non-responsive for failure to provide the information required within the time specified shall be at the sole discretion of the City.

FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS

IN THE EVENT THAT THESE REQUIREMENTS CONFLICT WITH THE CITY'S GENERAL EOC REQUIREMENTS, THE FUNDING AGENCY'S REQUIREMENTS WILL CONTROL.

1. NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246).

1.1. The goal and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, as follows:

		<u>Goal</u>
1.	Minority Participation:	16.9%
2.	Female Participation:	6.9%

- **1.2.** These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is Federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs Work in a geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographical area where the Work is actually performed. With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both federally involved and non-federally involved Work.
- **1.3.** The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the goals.
- **1.4.** The hours of minority and female employment and training shall be substantially uniform throughout the length of the Contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the Contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.
- **1.5.** The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 Working Days of award of any Subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for Work under the Contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of the Subcontractor; employer identification number of the Subcontractor; estimated dollar amount of the Subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the Subcontract; and the geographical area in which the subcontract is to be performed. The "covered area" is the City of San Diego.

2. NONDISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS FOR FEDERALLY ASSISTED CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND PROJECTS:

2.1. During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- 1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- 2. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by, on behalf of, the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- 3. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of worker with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advertising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 4. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- 5. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.
- 6. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended, in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 7. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding Paragraph 1 and the provisions of Paragraphs 1 through 7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each Subcontractor or Vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor or Vendor

as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

3. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSES:

- **3.1.** The following equal opportunity clauses are incorporated by reference herein:
 - 1. The equal opportunity clause located 41 CFR 60.1.4(a), which specifies the obligations imposed under Executive Order 11246.
 - 2. The equal opportunity clause located at 41 CFR 60-741.5, which contains the obligations imposed by Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.
 - 3. The "Equal Opportunity Clause" (Resolution No. 765092) filed on December 4, 1978, in the Office of the City Clerk, San Diego, California and incorporated in the "Standard Federal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications (Executive Order 11246 - Document No. 769023, filed September 11, 1984, in the Office of the City Clerk, San Diego, California) is applicable to all non-exempt City construction contracts and subcontracts of \$2,000 or more.
 - 4. Age Discrimination Act of 1975, Pub. L. 94-135.
 - 5. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Pub. L. 88-352.
 - 6. Section 13 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Acts Amendments of 1972, Pub. L. 92-5200 (the Clean Water Act).
 - 7. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Pub. L. 93-112 (Executive Orders 11914 and 11250).
 - 8. Women's Minority Business Enterprises, Executive Orders 11625, 12138 and 12432.
 - 9. Section 129 of the Small Business Administration Reauthorization and Amendment Act of 1988, Pub. L. 100-590.

4. STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT SPECIFICATIONS:

- **4.1.** The Contractor is required to comply with the 16 "Standard Federal Equal Employment Specifications" located at 41 CFR 60-4.3 for federal and federally-assisted construction contracts in excess of \$10,000, set forth below.
- **4.2.** The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative actions steps at least as extensive as the following:
 - 1. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign 2 or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation

to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

- 2. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organizations' responses.
- 3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each minority and female walk-in applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- 4. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- 5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under 2 above.
- 6. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreements; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- 7. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignments, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as superintendents, foreman, etc., prior to the initiation of Work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and dispositions of the subject matter.
- 8. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.

- 9. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- 10. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- 11. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.
- 12. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- 13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- 14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- 15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business associations.
- 16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.

5. VIOLATION OR BREACH OF REQUIREMENTS:

5.1. If at any time during the course of the Contract there is a violation of the Affirmative Action or Equal Employment Opportunity requirements by the Contractor, or the Subcontractors, the City will notify the Contractor of the breach. The City may withhold any further progress payments to the Contractor until the City is satisfied that the Contractor and Subcontractors are in full compliance with these requirements.

6. MONTHLY EMPLOYMENT UTILIZATION REPORTS:

6.1. Refer to GENERAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS, CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS in The WHITEBOOK and the following:

- 1. State of California Department of Transportation Payroll Report. Due to the City weekly.
- 2. Federal and Non-Federal Work in San Diego County. Submit an updated list only if work is complete or new contracts have been awarded during the span of this project.

7. **RECORDS OF PAYMENTS TO DBEs:**

7.1. The Contractor shall maintain records and documents of payments to DBEs for 3 years following the NOC. These records shall be made available for inspection upon request by any authorized representative of the City, DOT, or both. The reporting requirement shall be extended to any certified DBE Subcontractor.

8. FEDERAL WAGE REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS:

- **8.1.** The successful Bidder's work shall be required to comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled "Equal Employment Opportunity,", as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60).
- **8.2.** This Executive Order pertains to Equal Employment Opportunity regulations and contains significant changes to the regulations including new goals and timetables for women in construction and revised goals and time-tables for minorities in construction.
- **8.3.** Minimum wage rates for this project have been predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and are set forth in the Decision of the Secretary and bound into the specifications book. Should there be any difference between the state or federal wage rates, including health and welfare funds for any given craft, mechanic, or similar classifications needed to execute the Work, it shall be mandatory upon the Contractor or subcontractor to pay the higher of the two rates.
- **8.4.** The minimum wage rate to be paid by the Contractor and the Subcontractors shall be in accordance with the Federal Labor Standards Provisions (see pages 28 through 32 below) and Federal Wage Rates (see Wage Rates below) and General Prevailing Wage Determination made by the State of California, Director of Industrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Part 7, Chapter 1, Article 2, Sections 1770, 1773 and 1773.1, whichever is higher.
- **8.5.** A Contractor having 50 or more employees and its Subcontractors having 50 or more employees and who may be awarded a contract of \$50,000 or more will be required to maintain an affirmative action program, the standards for which are contained in the specifications.
- **8.6.** To be eligible for award, each Bidder shall comply with the affirmative action requirements which are contained in the specifications.
- **8.7.** Women will be afforded equal opportunity in all areas of employment. However, the employment of women shall not diminish the standards of requirements for the employment of minorities.

9. STATE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO STATE PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS:

- 9.1. In accordance with the provisions of California Labor Code Sections 1770, et seq. as amended, the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations has determined the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in accordance with the standards set forth in such Sections for the locality in which the Work is to be performed. Copies of the prevailing of per diem wages may found rate be at http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr/statistics research.html. The Contractor shall post a copy of the above determination of the prevailing rate of per diem wages at each job site and shall make them available to any interested party on request.
- **9.2.** Pursuant to Sections 1720 et seq., and 1770 et seq., of the California Labor Code the Contractor any Subcontractor shall pay not less than said specified rates determined by the Director of the California Department of Industrial Relations to all workmen employed by them in the execution of the Work.
- 9.3. The wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations and published in the Department of Transportation publication entitled, "General Prevailing Wage Rates", refer to expiration dates. If the published wage rate does not refer to a predetermined wage rate to be paid after the expiration date, said published rate of wage shall be in effect for the life of this contract. If the published wage rate refers to a predetermined wage rate to become effective upon expiration of the published wage rate and the predetermined wage rate is on file with the Department of Industrial Relations, such predetermined wage rate shall become effective on the date following the expiration date and shall apply to this contract in the same manner as if it had been published in said publication. If the predetermined wage rate refers to one or more additional expiration dates with additional predetermined wage rates, which expiration dates occur during the life of this contract, each successive predetermined wage rate shall apply to this contract on the date following the expiration date of the previous wage rate. If the last of such predetermined wage rates expires during the life of this contract, such wage rate shall apply to the balance of the contract.

The successful bidder intending to use a craft or classification not shown on the prevailing rate determinations may be required to pay the rate of the craft or classification most closely related to it.

- **10. WAGE RATES**. This contract shall be subject to the following Davis-Bacon Wage Decisions:
 - [Wage Determination Number: CA120001]
 - [Modification Number: **10**]
 - [Publication Date: **10/19/12**]

The required wage information may be accessed and downloaded from: http://www.wdol.gov/

11. SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968:

11.1. The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing and

Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and employment be given lower income residents of the project area and contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project.

- **11.2.** The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development set forth in 24 CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract. The parties to this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability which would prevent them from complying with these requirements.
- **11.3.** The Contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, if any, a notice advising the said labor organization or workers' representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment or training.
- **11.4.** The Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a finding that the Subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135. The Contractor will not subcontract with any Subcontractor where it has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135 and will not let any subcontract unless the Subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations.
- **11.5.** Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR Part 135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, its successors and assigns. Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant or recipient, its Contractors and Subcontractors, its successors, and assigns to those sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which Federal assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135.

Federal Labor Standards Provisions

Applicability

The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance.

A. 1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.

Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4).

Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Labor Relations

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and

(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.

(b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)

(c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

(d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

(iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

(iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part

Previous editions are obsolete form HUD-4010 (06/2009) ref. Handbook 1344.1 of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they are due. The Comptroller General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.

3. (i) Payrolls and basic records. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work preserved for a period of 3 years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section l(b)(2)(B)of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been

communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.

Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)

(ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired.

Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web site at

http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm

or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.

Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor for its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)

(b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;

Previous editions are obsolete

(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;

(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.

(c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).

(d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.

(iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. A minimum of trainee is required on this contract. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training. Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who

is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.

Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ',to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by

Previous editions are obsolete

the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract **6.** Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 1 through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.

7. Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements. All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.

10. (i) Certification of Eligibility. By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be

awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24. (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.

(iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., "Federal Housing Administration transactions", provides in part: "Whoever, for the purpose of...influencing in any way the action of such Administration.... makes, utters or publishes any statement knowing the same to be false..... shall be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both".

11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to his employer.

B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in such workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph.

Previous editions are obsolete

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.

(4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.

C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000.

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.

(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq.

(3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

Previous editions are obsolete

13. AGENCY SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

Note: Failure to comply with these specifications e.g., taking the specified steps prior to Bid opening, and to submit the forms located in Volume 2 with the Bid will lead to the Bid being declared **non-responsive** and, therefore, shall be rejected.

13.1. <u>HUD Requirements</u>

- **13.1.1.** Affirmative Good Faith Effort Steps shall include the steps listed at 24 CFR 85.36(e)(2), set forth below:
 - 1. Placing qualified DBE business enterprises on solicitation lists;
 - 2. Assuring that DBE business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
 - 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by DBE business enterprises;
 - 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by DBE business enterprises;
 - 5. Using the services and assistance of the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce; and
 - 6. Requiring the Subcontractors to take the affirmative steps listed in this section.
 - 7. See "DBE Potential Resources Centers" Section in a later part these specifications. Include with the G.F.E documentation a completed copy of the form AA61, "List of Work Made Available".

14. DBE POTENTIAL RESOURCES CENTERS:

- **14.1.** Utilization of SBA and MBDA resources is required at no cost. These agencies offer several services, including Internet access to databases of DBEs.
- 14.2. For additional assistance, the recipient or contractor can telephone the local offices of both agencies in their area (SBA Minority Enterprise Development Offices and DOC MBDA Regional Centers). The Internet web sites also include names, addresses, and phone or fax numbers of local SBA and MBDA centers. Do not write to these sources
- **14.3.** The Contractor shall provide documentation that the local SBA/MBDA offices or web sites were notified of the contracting bid opportunity at least 15 Working Days prior to Bid opening and solicitation to DBE subcontractors at least 10 Working Days prior to Bid opening. Documentation shall not only include the efforts to contact the information sources and list the Contract opportunity, but also the solicitation and response to the bid request.
- **14.4.** Include qualified DBEs on solicitation lists and record the information on Form AA63. Solicitation shall be as broad as possible.

- **14.5.** The following web sites include a list of available sources for expanding the search for eligible DBEs:
 - 1. http://www.sba.gov
 - 2. http://www.ccr.gov
 - 3. http://www.mbda.gov
- **14.6.** If DBE sources are not located, explain why and describe the efforts made.
- **14.7.** The Contractor shall send invitations to at least 3 (or all, if less than 3) DBE vendors for each item of work referred by sources contacted. The invitations shall adequately specify the items for which bids are requested. The record of "good faith" efforts shall indicate a real desire for a positive response, such as a certified mail receipt or a documented telephone conversation.
- **14.8.** A regular letter or an unanswered telephone call is not an adequate "good faith" effort. A list of all sub-bidders, including the bidders not selected and non DBE Subcontractors, and bid amount for each item of the Work shall be submitted on Form AA62. If a low bid was not accepted, an explanation shall be provided.

Name and Address	Telephone and Web Site
U.S. Small Business Administration	(415) 744-6820 Extension 0
455 Market Street, Suite 600	PRO-Net Database: <u>http://www.ccr.gov/¹</u>
San Francisco, CA 94105	Bid Notification: <u>http://web.sba.gov/subnet/²</u>
RE: Minority Enterprise Development Offices	
U.S. Department of Commerce	(415) 744-3001
Minority Business Development Agency	Phoenix/ Opportunity Database:
211 Main Street, Room 1280	http://www.mbda.gov ³
San Francisco, CA 94105	RE: Business Development Centers

14.9. Federal Agencies (must be contacted and solicitations posted on their websites):

14.10. State Agencies (optional contacts):

Name and Address	Telephone and Web Site
California Department of Transportation	Mailing Address: PO Box 942874
(CALTRANS) Business Enterprise Program ⁴	Sacramento, CA 94274-0015
1820 Alhambra Blvd.	(916) 227-9599
Sacramento, CA 95816	www.dot.ca.gov/hq/bep
CA Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) ⁵	
505 Van Ness Avenue	http://www.opuo.co.gov/statio/supplicativersity
San Francisco, CA 94102-3298	http://www.cpuc.ca.gov/static/supplierdiversity

Notes:

- 1. PRO-Net new database is the SBA's electronic search engine that was put on line January 1, 2004, containing business profiles for nearly 200,000 businesses. The SBA requests Internet contact only for a list of potential DBE subcontractors that can be downloaded from PRO-Net: http://www.ccr.gov. Downloading will verify that the prime contractor made the required contact with the SBA.
- 2. The Contractor shall use SUB-Net to post subcontracting opportunities. The Contractor shall post Subcontractor opportunities at least 15 Working Days prior to bid opening. Small businesses can review this web site to identify opportunities in their areas of expertise. The web site is designed primarily as a place for large businesses to post solicitations and notices. Provide copy of the Display Solicitation Record with the GFE documentation.
- 3. The Contractors shall use MBDA web portal to post subcontracting opportunities. The Contractor shall post subcontractor opportunities at least 15 Working Days prior to Bid opening. Small businesses can review this web site to identify opportunities in their areas of expertise. The web site is designed primarily as a place for large businesses to post solicitations and notices. Provide copy of the Offer Overview with the GFE documentation.
- 4. Based on the federal DBE program, CALTRANS maintains a database and provides directories of minority and woman-owned firms.
- 5. CPUC maintains a database of DBE-owned business enterprises and serves to inform the public.

15. GOOD FAITH EFFORT DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTALS:

- **15.1.** The affirmative GFE steps documentation shall be submitted within 4 Working Days of the Bid Opening. If this documentation is not submitted when due, the City will declare the Bid non-responsive and reject it.
- **15.2.** The required documentation shall be submitted and logged in at the following address:

CITY OF SAN DIEGO PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACTING GROUP 1200 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 200 SAN DIEGO, CA 92101 SUBJECT: AFFIRMATIVE GOOD FAITH EFFORTS DOCUMENTATION BID NO. <u>K-13-5759-DBB-1-A</u>

15.3. The Contractor shall maintain the records documenting compliance with requirements including documentation of its GFE and data relied upon in formulating its fair share objectives.

16. FORMS:

- **16.1.** The following forms in Volume 1 shall be completed and submitted within 4 Working Days of the Bid opening. Failure to include any of the forms shall cause the Bid to be deemed **non-responsive**.
 - 1.Form AA61:List of Work Made Available
 - 2. Form AA62: Summary of Bids Received
 - 3. Form AA63 Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited

17. ATTACHMENTS:

1.	Form AA61:	List of Work Made Available
2.	Form AA62:	Summary of Bids Received
3.	Form AA63	Good Faith Effort List of Subcontractors Solicited

FUNDING AGENCY PROVISIONS

ATTACHMENTS
LIST OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE

List items of the Work the Bidder made available to DBE firms. Identify those items of the Work the Bidder might otherwise perform with its own forces and those items that have been broken down into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. For each item listed, show the dollar amount and percentage of the Base Bid. The Bidder must demonstrate that enough work to meet the goal was made available to DBE firms.

ITEM OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE	NAICS CODE	BIDDER NORMALLY PERFORMS ITEM (Y/N)	ITEM BROKEN DOWN TO FACILITATE PARTICIPATION (Y/N)	AMOUNT	PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID

SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVED

Type of Job	NAICS CODES	Company Name	Selected (Y/N)	Bid Amount	DBE	Non-DBE	Explanation for not Selecting

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) GOOD FAITH EFFORT LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS SOLICITED

Contractor Name	Contractor Address	How Located	Date of Contact	Contact Method	Task Description	Response (Yes/No)

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

CONTRACT FORMS AGREEMENT

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

IN CONSIDERATION of the payments to be made hereunder and the mutual undertakings of the parties hereto, City and Contractor agree as follows:

- 1. The following are incorporated into this contract as though fully set forth herein:
 - (a) The attached Faithful Performance and Payment Bonds.
 - (b) The attached Proposal included in the Bid documents by the Contractor.
 - (c) That certain documents entitled <u>RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR</u> <u>REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS</u>, on file in the Public Works Department as Document No._____, as well as all matters referenced therein.
- Contractor shall perform and be bound by all the terms and conditions of this contract and in strict conformity therewith shall perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner <u>RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS</u>, Bid Number <u>K-13-5759-DBB-1-A</u>, San Diego, California.
- 3. For such performances, the City shall pay to Contractor the amounts set forth at the times and in the manner and with such additions or deductions as are provided for in this contract, and Contractor shall accept such payment in full satisfaction of all claims incident to such performances.
- 4. No claim or suit whatsoever shall be made or brought by Contractor against any officer, agent, or employee of the City for or on account of anything done or omitted to be done in connection with this contract, nor shall any such officer, agent, or employee be liable hereunder.
- 5. This contract is effective as of the date that the Mayor or designee signs the agreement.

CONTRACT FORMS (continued) AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this agreement is signed by the City of San Diego, acting by and through its Mayor or designee, pursuant to Resolution No. R - 300700 or Municipal Code _authorizing such execution.

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY

By

Print Name: Mayor or designee

0G/13 Date:

Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney

By Print Name: Katherine A Malcolm Deputy City Attorney

Date:____

CONTRACTOR

Bv

Tohnson Kavin Print Name:

Title: President

Date: 1-15-13

City of San Diego License No.: 3200 106232/

State Contractor's License No.: 79033

CONTRACT FORMS (continued) PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND:

JOHNSON FLOORING, INC. _______, a corporation, as principal, and <u>SureTec Insurance Company</u> ______, a corporation authorized to do business in the State of California, as Surety, hereby obligate themselves, their successors and assigns, jointly and severally, to The City of San Diego a municipal corporation in the sum of TWO HUNDRED SIX THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS AND 50/100 (\$206,325.50) ______ for the faithful performance of the annexed contract, and in the sum of <u>TWO HUNDRED SIX THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE DOLLARS AND</u> 50/100 (\$206,325.50) ______ for the benefit of laborers and materialmen designated below.

Conditions:

If the Principal shall faithfully perform the annexed contract <u>RECREATION CENTER</u> <u>GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS</u>, Bid Number <u>K-13-5759-DBB-1-A</u>, San Diego, California then the obligation herein with respect to a faithful performance shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

If the Principal shall promptly pay all persons, firms and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the execution of this contract, and shall pay all amounts due under the California Unemployment Insurance Act then the obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall be void; otherwise it shall remain in full force.

The obligation herein with respect to laborers and materialmen shall inure to the benefit of all persons, firms and corporations entitled to file claims under the provisions of Chapter 3 of Division 5 of Title I of the Government Code of the State of California or under the provisions of Section 3082 et seq. of the Civil Code of the State of California.

Changes in the terms of the annexed contract or specifications accompanying same or referred to therein shall not affect the Surety's obligation on this bond, and the Surety hereby waives notice of same.

CONTRACT FORMS (continued) PERFORMANCE BOND AND LABOR AND MATERIALMEN'S BOND

The Surety shall pay reasonable attorney's fees should suit be brought to enforce the provisions of this bond.

Dated______January 11 _____, 2_013_____

Approved as to Form and Legality

Jan I. Goldsmith, City Attorney

Johnson Flooring, Inc.

Principal Bv Tohnson

Printed Name of Person Signing for Principal

Sure Tes. Insurance Company Suret By Jara Bacon, Attorney-in-fact

Approved:

Βv

Attorney

Mayor or designee

3033 5th Avenue, Suite 300 Local Address of Surety

San Diego, CA 92103 Local Address (City, State) of Surety

800-288-0351 Local Telephone No. of Surety

Premium \$ 4.095.00

Bond No. 5151430

43 | Page

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of California County of San Diego

On <u>January 11, 2013</u> before me, <u>Jamie Tofflemire, Notary Public</u>, personally appeared <u>Tara Bacon</u>, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her authorized capacity, and that by her signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature_



(Seal)

POA #: 510093 - San Diego

SureTec Insurance Company LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know All Men by These Presents, That SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY (the "Company"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas, and having its principal office in Houston, Harris County, Texas, does by these presents make, constitute and appoint

Dale Harshaw, Geoffrey Shelton, Tara Bacon, Bradley Orr, Kyle King

its true and lawful Attorney-in-fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred in its name, place and stead, to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all bonds, recognizances, undertakings or other instruments or contracts of suretyship to include waivers to the conditions of contracts and consents of surety for:

Five Million and 00/100 Dollars (\$5,000,000.00)

and to bind the Company thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such bond were signed by the President, sealed with the corporate seal of the Company and duly attested by its Secretary, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the said Attorney-in-Fact may do in the premises. Said appointment shall continue in force until 10/31/2013 and is made under and by authority of the following resolutions of the Board of Directors of the SureTec Insurance Company:

Be it Resolved, that the President, any Vice-President, any Assistant Vice-President, any Secretary or any Assistant Secretary shall be and is hereby vested with full power and authority to appoint any one or more suitable persons as Attorney(s)-in-Fact to represent and act for and on behalf of the Company subject to the following provisions:

Attorney-in-Fact may be given full power and authority for and in the name of and of behalf of the Company, to execute, acknowledge and deliver, any and all bonds, recognizances, contracts, agreements or indemnity and other conditional or obligatory undertakings and any and all notices and documents canceling or terminating the Company's liability thereunder, and any such instruments so executed by any such Attorney-in-Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if signed by the President and sealed and effected by the Corporate Secretary.

Be it Resolved, that the signature of any authorized officer and seal of the Company heretofore or hereafter affixed to any power of attorney or any certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any power of attorney or certificate bearing facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached. (Adopted at a meeting held on 20^{th} of April, 1999.)

In Witness Whereof, SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its President, and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed this 3rd day of September, A.D. 2010.

State of Texas County of Harris



SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY ̈́Rν John Knox Jr., President

On this 3rd day of September, A.D. 2010 before me personally came John Knox Jr., to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say, that he resides in Houston, Texas, that he is President of SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY, the company described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seal of said Company; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said Company; and that he signed his name thereto by like order.



lacquelyn/Maldonado, Notary Public

My commission expires May 18, 2013

I, M. Brent Beaty, Assistant Secretary of SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Power of Attorney, executed by said Company, which is still in full force and effect; and furthermore, the resolutions of the Board of Directors, set out in the Power of Attorney are in full force and effect.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Compa	ny at Houston, Texas this	<u>_11th</u> day of _	January	, 2013	_, A.D.
		M. Brent I	<u>2015</u> Beaty, Assistant Se	cretary V	ti de l'alement de categor d'annance

Any Instrument issued in excess of the penalty stated above is totally vold and without any validity. For verification of the authority of this power you may call (713) 812-0800 any business day between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm CST.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE

PROJECT TITLE: Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-17 regarding Drug-Free Workplace as outlined in INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS. "Drug-Free Workplace", of the project specifications, and that;

Johnson Flooring Inc. (Name under which business is conducted)

has in place a drug-free workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of subdivisions a) through c) of the policy as outlined.

Signed _____ Printed Name Kuun Johnson Title President

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION

PROJECT TITLE: Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

I hereby certify that I am familiar with the requirements of San Diego City Council Policy No. 100-4 regarding the American With Disabilities Act (ADA) outlined in the INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS, "American With Disabilities Act", of the project specifications, and that;

(Name under which business is conducted)

has in place workplace program that complies with said policy. I further certify that each subcontract agreement for this project contains language which indicates the subcontractor's agreement to abide by the provisions of the policy as outlined.

Signed A Printed Name Kuvin Johnson Title President

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

CONTRACTOR STANDARDS – PLEDGE OF COMPLIANCE

PROJECT TITLE: Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement -- Three Locations

I declare under penalty of perjury that I am authorized to make this certification on behalf of <u>Tohnson Flooring The</u>, as Contractor, that I am familiar with the requirements of City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3224 regarding Contractor Standards as outlined in INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS ("Contractor Standards"), of the project specifications, and that Contractor has complied with those requirements.

I further certify that each of the Contractor's subcontractors whose subcontracts are greater than \$50,000 in value has completed a Pledge of Compliance attesting under penalty of perjury of having complied with City of San Diego Municipal Code § 22.3224.

Dated this 15 Day of January, 2013.	
Signed	
Printed Name Kurr Johnsm	,
Title President	

AFFIDAVIT OF DISPOSAL

WHEREAS, on the _____ DAY OF _____, 2___, the undersigned entered into and executed a contract with the City of San Diego, a municipal corporation, for:

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS (Project)

as particularly described in said contract and identified as Bid No. K-13-5759-DBB-1-A; SAP No. (WBS/CC/IO) 12003890; and WHEREAS, the specification of said contract requires the Contractor to affirm that "all brush, trash, debris, and surplus materials resulting from this project have been disposed of in a legal manner"; and WHEREAS, said contract has been completed and all surplus materials disposed of:

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the final payment by the City of San Diego to said Contractor under the terms of said contract, the undersigned Contractor, does hereby affirm that all surplus materials as described in said contract have been disposed of at the following location(s)

and that they have been disposed of according to all applicable laws and regulations.

Dated this	DAY OF	7	2
Dated this	DAT OF	ʻ	∠ <u> </u>

Contractor

υy

ATTEST:

State of _____ County of _____

On this _____ DAY OF _____, 2____, before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County and State, duly commissioned and sworn, personally appeared

known to me to be the Contractor named in the foregoing Release, and whose name is subscribed thereto, and acknowledged to me that said Contractor executed the said Release.

Notary Public in and for said County and State

SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS (SSP)

THESE SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS CONFORM TO THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION (THE GREENBOOK) CURRENTLY ADOPTED BY THE CITY, INCLUDING ITS CURRENT SUPPLEMENT AMENDMENTS (CITY SUPPLEMENTS INCLUDED IN THE WHITEBOOK), EXCEPT FOR THE FOLLOWING:

STYLE OF SPECIFICATIONS

The City is gradually standardizing the style and language of the standard specifications for the public works construction. The new style and language follows the Federal guidelines for "Plain Language" to the extent possible.

The use of this new style does not change the meaning of a specification not yet using this style. Where used in the Contract Documents, statement or command type phrases (i.e., active voice and imperative mood) refer to and are directed at the Bidder or Contractor as applicable. The specifications are written to the Bidder before award and the Contractor after. Before award, interpret sentences written in the imperative mood as starting with "The Bidder must" and interpret "you" as "the Bidder's." After award, interpret sentences written in the imperative mood as starting with "The Contractor must" and interpret "you" as "the Contractor's." Similarly, interpret "we" and "us" as "the City" and "our" as "the City's."

PART 1 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 1 – TERMS, DEFINITIONS, ABBREVIATIONS, UNITS OF MEASURE, AND SYMBOLS

1-2 TERMS AND DEFINITIONS.

Agency – ADD the following:

Regulatory activities handled by the City of San Diego Developmental Services, Fire and Planning Departments, or any other City Department are not subject to the responsibilities of the City under this contract.

Certificate of Compliance – To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Certificate of Compliance – A written document signed and submitted by a supplier or manufacturer that certifies that the material or assembled material supplied to the Work site complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

Contract Documents – To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Agreement, Addendum, Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, special notice page, funding agency provisions, Bid and documentation accompanying the Bid and any post-bid documentation submitted prior to the Notice of Award when attached as an exhibit to the Contract, Bonds, permits from jurisdictional regulatory agencies, Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP), City's EOCP Requirements, City Supplement, Plans, Standard Plans, Construction Documents, Reference Specifications listed in the Invitation to Bid or the RFP for Design-Build contracts, Request for Qualifications (RFQ), Statement of Qualifications (SOQ), Request for Proposals (RFP), modifications issued after the execution of the Contract e.g., Change Orders, Construction Manager At Risk's Guaranteed Maximum Price including written qualifications, assumptions and conditions thereto and Pre-construction Services Agreement.

ADD: **Limited Notice To Proceed** – A written notice given from the City to the Contractor that authorizes the Contractor to start a limited amount of work that is not Construction Work, such as finalizing subcontract agreements, ordering materials, mobilization, furnishing a field office, and any other preliminary work done prior to performing Construction Work.

Normal Working Hours. To the City Supplement, ADD the following:

The Normal Working Hours shall be 8:30 AM to 3:30 PM.

Notice of Completion (NOC) – ADD the following:

See California Civil Code section 9204.

Samples - Physical examples which illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards by which the Work will be evaluated.

SECTION 2 - SCOPE AND CONTROL OF WORK

2-1.2.2 Joint Venture Contractors. To the City Supplement, last paragraph, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Joint Venture shall designate an on-site representative and an alternate in writing. The on-site representative and the alternate shall have the full authority to bind all Joint Venture partners.

The Joint Venture shall provide a copy of the Joint Venture agreement and the Joint Venture license to the City within 10 Working Days after receipt by the Bidder of Contract forms.

2-3.1.2 Subcontractor List. ADD the following:

For Extra Work, the Contractor shall submit Form CC10, "CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER (CCO)" with each CCO proposal. Form CC10 is available for download from the EOCP site at: http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/pdf/cc10.pdf

2-3.2 Self Performance. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The Contractor shall perform, with its own organization, Contract work amounting to at least 50 percent of the base bid alone or base bid and any additive or deductive alternate(s) that together when added or deducted form the basis of determining the Apparent Low Bidder as specified. The self performance percentage requirement will be waived for contracts when a "B" License is required or allowed.

2-3.3 Status of Subcontractors. ADD the following:

With every request for payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer a breakdown showing monthly and cumulative amounts of the Work performed under Change Order by the Contractor and the Subcontractors. The reporting format shall be approved by the Engineer.

2-3.4 Subcontract Requirements. To the City Supplement, ADD the following paragraph:

The Contractor shall ensure that all of its Subcontractors are licensed at the time of the execution of their subcontract agreements. In the event a Subcontractor is not properly licensed, the Contractor shall cease payment to Subcontractor for all work performed when the Subcontractor was improperly licensed. Any payment made by the Contractor to a Subcontractor for work performed when the Subcontractor was unlicensed shall be returned to the City.

Where the Contract Documents require that a particular product be installed or applied by an applicator approved by the manufacturer, it is the Contractor's responsibility to ensure the Subcontractor or Supplier employed for such work is approved by the manufacturer.

2-5.2 Precedence of Contract Documents. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

2-5.2 Precedence of Contract Documents. If there is a conflict between any of the Contract Documents, the document highest in the order of precedence shall control. The order of precedence, from highest to lowest, shall be as follows:

- 1) Permits (i.e., issued by jurisdictional regulatory agencies)
- 2) Change Orders and Supplemental Agreements; whichever occurs last
- 3) Contract and Agreement
- 4) Addenda
- 5) Bid (e.g., price Proposal for <u>Design-Build</u> contracts)
- 6) Request for Proposal (RFP)
- 7) Invitation to Bid
- 8) Instruction to Bidders
- 9) Request for Qualifications (RFQ)
- 10) Special Provisions (i.e., City's EOCP Requirements, City Supplement, and Supplementary Special Provisions (SSP))
- 11) Plans
- 12) Construction Documents (for <u>Design-Build</u> contracts)
- 13) Standard Drawings
- 14) Reference Specifications (e.g., GREENBOOK)
- 15) Technical Proposal (for <u>Design-Build</u> contracts)
- 16) Statement of Qualifications (SOQ)

When additional requirements by the funding sources are physically or by reference incorporated in the Contract Documents, the funding source's requirements shall govern **unless specified otherwise**.

Figured dimensions shall take precedence over scaled dimensions. Detailed drawings shall take precedence over general drawings.

2-5.3.1 General. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

When required by the Contract Documents or when requested by the Engineer, the Contractor shall provide the submittals as specified in 2-5.3.2, 2-5.3.3, and 2-5.3.4 to the Engineer. Materials shall neither be furnished nor fabricated, nor shall any work for which submittals are required be performed before the required submittals have been reviewed and accepted by the Engineer. The payment for the submittals shall be included in the various Bid items.

Neither review nor acceptance of submittals by the Engineer shall relieve the Contractor from responsibility for errors, omissions, or deviations from the Contract Documents, unless such deviations were specifically called to the attention of the Engineer in the letter of transmittal. The Contractor shall be responsible for the correctness of the submittals.

The Contractor shall allow a minimum of 20 working days for review of submittals unless otherwise specified in the Special Provisions. Each submittal shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal.

2-5.4.1 General. ADD the following:

Source Identification e.g., RFI numbers and Change Order numbers as required to identify the source of the change to the Contract Documents shall be noted.

2-5.4.2 Asset Specific Red-lines (d). ADD the following:

- Dimensional changes to the drawings.
- Revisions to details shown on drawings.
- Depths of foundations below first floor.
- Locations and depths of underground utilities.
- Revisions to routing of piping and conduits.
- Revisions to electrical circuitry.
- Actual equipment locations.
- Duct size and routing.
- Locations of concealed internal utilities.
- Changes made by Change Order.
- Details not on original Plans.

2-6 WORK TO BE DONE. ADD the following:

In accordance with the provisions of California Law, the Contractor shall possess or require the Subcontractor(s) to possess valid appropriate license(s) for the Work being performed.

2-10 AUTHORITY OF BOARD AND ENGINEER. ADD the following:

Regulating agencies of the City, such as Developmental Services, Fire and Planning Departments, enforce Legal Requirements and standards. These enforcement activities are not subject to the responsibilities of the Engineer under this Agreement.

2-11 INSPECTION. ADD the following:

The City may utilize field inspectors to assist the Engineer during construction in observing performance of the Contractor. The inspector is for the purpose of assisting the Engineer and shall not be confused with an inspector with a City regulatory agency or with a Special Inspector.

Code compliance testing (including all Geotechnical requirements) and inspections required by codes or ordinances, or by a plan approval authority, shall be the responsibility of and shall be paid by the Contractor, unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents.

The Contractor's quality control testing and inspections shall be the sole responsibility of the Contractor and paid by the Contractor included in the Bid price.

ADD: 2-17 CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION. The Contractor, Subcontractors, and Suppliers shall register with the City's EOCP via Prism® i.e., the City's web-based contract compliance portal at: <u>https://pro.prismcompliance.com/contractor/plugins/pages/contractormenu.aspx</u>.

The Contractor shall ensure that proposed Subcontractors and Suppliers have completed the registration prior to Notice of Intent to Award. If the Contractor fails to have its Subcontractors and Suppliers registered after the NTP has been issued, the City will withhold a minimum of 10% in addition to the Retention from all invoices submitted until the Contractor and all listed Subcontractors and Suppliers are properly registered in PRISM.

SECTION 3 – CHANGES IN WORK

3-3.2.2 Basis for Establishing Costs (a) Labor, City Supplement, first and second paragraphs, DELETE in entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The City reserves the right to request financial records of salaries for an employee, wages, bonuses and deductions to substantiate the actual cost of labor certified by a California licensed Certified Public Accountant. The Contractor shall use the City provided form i.e., "PUBLIC WORKS PAYROLL REPORTING FORM" which is available at http://www.sandiego.gov/eoc/pdf/payrollreport.pdf to list the labor rates of its personnel and Subcontractors who work on this Project. An initial submittal shall be made prior to NTP.

The payment for payroll records shall be included in the various Bid item unless a separate Bid item has been provided.

SECTION 4 - CONTROL OF MATERIALS

4-1.3.5 Special Inspections. To the City Supplement, ADD the following:

Special Inspection and testing by the Special Inspectors shall meet the minimum requirements of the prevailing Codes and by the City's Development Services Department (DSD) and reference in http://www.sandiego.gov/development-services/industry/special.shtml

4-1.5 Certificates of Compliance. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

4-1.5 Certificates of Compliance. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Certificates of Compliance shall be furnished to the Engineer prior to the use of any material or assembled material for which these Specifications so require or if so required by the Engineer.

The Engineer may waive the materials testing requirements of the Specifications and accept a Certificate of Compliance. Manufacturing test data may be required by the Engineer to be included with the submittal.

Materials used on the basis of a Certificate of Compliance may be sampled and tested at any time. The submission of a Certificate of Compliance shall not relieve the Contractor of responsibility for incorporating material in the Work which conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents, and any material not conforming to the requirements will be subject to rejection whether in place or not.

When professional certification of performance criteria of materials, systems or equipment is required by the Contract Documents, the City shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such calculations and certifications.

4-1.6 Trade Names or Equals. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

ADD the following:

Whenever materials or equipment are indicated in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the naming of the item is intended to establish the type, function, and quality required. Unless stated otherwise, materials or equipment of other Suppliers may be accepted if sufficient information is submitted to the Engineer for review to determine whether the material or equipment proposed is equivalent or equal to that named.

- a) The Contractor shall submit its list of proposed substitutions for "an equal" ("or equal") item(s) no later than 5 Working Days after the determination of the Apparent Low Bidder and on a City form when provided by the City.
- b) The request for substitution shall include the following information:
 - i. Whether or not acceptance of the substitute for use in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents to adopt the design to the proposed substitute.
 - ii. Whether or not incorporation or use of the substitute in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.
 - iii. All variations of the proposed substitute from the items originally specified will be identified.
 - iv. Available maintenance, repair, and replacement service requirements. The manufacturer shall have a local service agency within 50 miles of the site which maintains properly trained personnel and adequate spare parts and is able to respond and complete repairs within 24 hours.
 - v. Certification that the proposed substitute will perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design, and be similar and of equal substance to that indicated, and be suited to the same use as that specified.

- c) There is no guaranteed time frame for the City's review of the substitution requests.
- d) The burden of proof as to the type, function, and quality of any such substitute product, material or equipment shall be upon the Contractor. The Engineer may require at the Contractor's expense additional data about the proposed substitute.
- e) If the Engineer takes no exceptions to the proposed substitution, it shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for the efficiency, sufficiency, quality, and performance of the substitute material or equipment, in the same manner and degree as the material and equipment specified by name.
- f) The lack of action(s) on the Engineer's side within the Contractor's requested time shall not constitute acceptance of the substitution.
- g) Acceptance by the Engineer of a substitute item shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for full compliance with the Contract Documents.
- h) For the substitution review process or to have materials listed on the AML, refer to the AML standard review process.
- i) The Bid submittal shall be based on the material and equipment specified by name in the Contract. If the proposal is rejected by the Engineer, the Contractor shall not be entitled to either an extension in Contract Time, increase in the Contract Price, or both.
- j) As applicable, no Shop Drawing or Working Drawing submittals shall be made for a substitute item nor shall any substitute item be ordered, installed, or utilized without the Engineer's prior written.
- k) The Contractor shall reimburse the City for the charges of the Engineer for evaluating each proposed substitute.
- 1) For Design-Build contracts, one copy of all designer reviewed submittals shall be provided to the Engineer.

SECTION 6 - PROSECUTION, PROGRESS AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK

6-1.2 Commencement of Work. To the GREENBOOK and City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

Unless specified otherwise, construction shall start within 5 Working Days after NTP and be diligently prosecuted to completion within the Contract Time. The Contractor shall not start any construction activity at the Site until the Pre-construction Meeting is held and the NTP has been issued by the Engineer.

Upon the Contractor's written request, the City may delay the NTP as follows:

- a) Up to 5 Working Days from the Pre-construction Meeting, or
- b) Up to 40 Working Days from the Limited NTP for the preparation, submittal, obtaining approval for and filing of the PRDs in accordance with 801, "STORM WATER POLLUTION CONTROL," or

c) Up to 60 Working Days from the Limited NTP for the preparation, submittal, and approval of the TCP on "D-sheets" when specified in 7-10.2, "Traffic Control."

The Contractor shall notify SDG&E at least 10 Working Days prior to excavating within 10' of SDG&E Underground High Voltage Transmission Power Lines (i.e., 69 KV and higher).

For areas that do not require engineered TCP on D-sheets, the Contractor may at any time after the Pre-construction Meeting obtain a TCP Permit via Working Drawings or the City's over the counter process and start the Work. If the Contractor decides to commence the construction work before the completion of the D-sheet TCPs, the Contractor shall forfeit the 60 Working Days specified here. The D-sheet TCP shall be done concurrently and no additional time will be granted.

For paving Work, the Contractor shall coordinate the Work to facilitate the installation and protection of the new curb ramps and associated concrete work prior to commencing the asphalt overlay operations. The Work at a specific location shall not commence until all layouts and measurements are agreed upon by both the Contractor and the Engineer.

ADD: 6-1.8 Pre-construction Meeting.

Within 20 Working Days from the Limited NTP the Engineer will schedule a mandatory preconstruction meeting (Pre-construction Meeting) with the Contractor. The agenda will include items such as NTP, design services and submittal and review process for Design-Build contracts, critical elements of the work schedule, submittal schedule, cost breakdown of major lump sum items, payment requests and processing, environmental and community concerns, coordination with the involved utility firms, the level of record project documents required and emergency telephone numbers for all representatives involved in the course of construction.

ADD: 6-8.1 Completion. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

6-8.1 Completion. The Contractor shall submit a written assertion that the Work has been completed. If, in the Engineer's judgment, the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Engineer will set forth in writing the date the Work was completed. This will be the date when the Contractor is relieved from responsibility to protect and maintain the Work.

6-8.2 Acceptance. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

6-8.2 Acceptance. Acceptance will occur after all of the requirements contained in the Contract Documents have been fulfilled. If, in the Engineer's judgment, the Contractor has fully performed the Contract, the Engineer will accept the Contractor's performance of the Contract.

6-8.3 Warranty. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

6-8.3 Warranty. Unless specified otherwise, the Work shall be warranted by the Contractor against defective workmanship and materials for a period of 1 year.

a) The warranty period shall start on the date of completion of the Work as determined by the Engineer.

- b) The Contractor shall provide an unconditional warranty on all installed fiber optic cable for a minimum period of 2 years.
- c) The warranty period for the following items of the Work shall be 3 years:
 - 1. Work under Section 500 (requires Long Term Warranty Contract (LTWC))
 - 2. DWT Construction (requires manufacturer's warranty)
 - 3. LED signal modules (requires manufacturer's warranty)
 - 4. Private sewer pumps including the alarm panel and all other accessories. The Contractor shall provide the City and property owner a copy of the warranty. (requires manufacturer's warranty)
- d) The Contractor shall involve the manufacturer in the installation and startup as needed to secure any extended warranty required.
- e) The warranty period for specific items covered under manufacturers' or suppliers' warranties shall commence on the date they are placed into service at the direction of or as approved by the Engineer in writing.
- f) All warranties express or implied, from Subcontractors or Suppliers, of any tier, for the work performed and materials furnished shall be assigned, in writing, to the City, and such warranties shall be delivered to the Engineer prior to acceptance of the Contractor's performance of the Contract.
- g) The Contractor shall replace or repair defective Work in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer, after notice to do so from the Engineer, and within the time specified in the notice. If the Contractor fails to make such replacement or repairs within the time specified in the notice, the City may perform the replacement or repairs at the Contractor's expense. If the Contractor fails to reimburse the City for the actual costs, the Contractor's Surety shall be liable for the cost thereof.
- h) Nothing in this warranty is intended to limit any manufacturer's warranty which provides the City with greater warranty rights than set forth in this section or the Contract Documents.
- i) These specifications are not intended to constitute a period of limitations or waiver of any other rights or remedies City may have regarding the Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents or federal or state law.
- j) The Contractor shall respond and initiate corrective action within 24 hours of notice of nonconforming Work that poses an imminent threat to person or property.

6-9 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

MODIFY to increase the daily value from \$250 to \$1,000 for contracts with a value of over \$100,000.

SECTION 7 - RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE CONTRACTOR

7-3 LIABILITY INSURANCE. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

The insurance provisions herein must not be construed to limit your indemnity obligations contained in this contract.

ADD: 7-3.1 Policies and Procedures.

- a) You must procure the insurance described below, at your sole cost and expense, to provide coverage against claims for loss including injuries to persons or damage to property, which may arise out of or in connection with the performance of the Work by you, your agents, representatives, officers, employees or subcontractors.
- b) Insurance coverage for property damage resulting from your operations is on a replacement cost valuation. The market value will not be accepted.
- c) You must maintain this insurance for the duration of this contract and at all times thereafter when you are correcting, removing, or replacing Work in accordance with this contract. Your liabilities under this contract, e.g., your indemnity obligations, will is not deemed limited to the insurance coverage required by this contract.
- d) Payment for insurance is included in the various items of Work as bid by you, and except as specifically agreed to by the City in writing, you are not entitled to any additional payment. Do not begin any work under this contract until you have provided and the City has approved all required insurance.
- e) Policies of insurance must provide that the City is entitled to 30 days (10 days for cancellation due to non-payment of premium) prior written notice of cancellation or non-renewal of the policy. Maintenance of specified insurance coverage is a material element of this contract. Your failure to maintain or renew coverage or to provide evidence of renewal during the term of this contract may be treated by the City as a material breach of contract.

ADD: 7-3.2 Types of Insurance.

7-3.2.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

- a) Commercial General Liability Insurance must be written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 00 01 07 98 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.
- b) The policy must cover liability arising from premises and operations, XCU (explosions, underground, and collapse), independent contractors, products/completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, bodily injury, property damage, and liability assumed under an insured's contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract).
- c) There must be no endorsement or modification limiting the scope of coverage for either "insured vs. insured" claims or contractual liability. You must maintain the same or equivalent insurance for at least 10 years following completion of the Work.

d) All costs of defense must be outside the policy limits. Policy coverage must be in liability limits of not less than the following:

Limits of Liability	General Annual Aggregate Limit
\$2,000,000	Other than Products/Completed Operations
\$2,000,000	Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit
\$1,000,000	Personal Injury Limit
\$1,000,000	Each Occurrence
\$2,000,000 \$2,000,000 \$1,000,000	Other than Products/Completed Operations Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit Personal Injury Limit

7-3.2.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.

- a) You must provide a policy or policies of Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance written on the current version of the ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or later version or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad in the amount of \$1,000,000 combined single limit per accident, covering bodily injury and property damage for owned, non-owned, and hired automobiles ("Any Auto").
- b) All costs of defense must be outside the limits of the policy.

ADD: 7-3.3 Rating Requirements. Except for the State Compensation Insurance Fund, all insurance required by this contract as described herein must be carried only by responsible insurance companies with a rating of, or equivalent to, at least "A-, VI" by A.M. Best Company, that are authorized by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in the State, and that have been approved by the City.

7-3.3.1 Non-Admitted Carriers. The City will accept insurance provided by non-admitted, "surplus lines" carriers only if the carrier is authorized to do business in the State and is included on the List of Eligible Surplus Lines Insurers (LESLI list).

All policies of insurance carried by non-admitted carriers must be subject to all of the requirements for policies of insurance provided by admitted carriers described herein.

ADD: 7-3.4 Evidence of Insurance. Furnish to the City documents e.g., certificates of insurance and endorsements evidencing the insurance required herein, and furnish renewal documentation prior to expiration of this insurance. Each required document must be signed by the insurer or a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. We reserve the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required herein.

ADD: 7-3.5 Policy Endorsements.

7-3.5.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.

7-3.5.1.1 Additional Insured.

a) You must provide at your expense policy endorsement written on the current version of the ISO Occurrence form CG 20 10 11 85 or an equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad.

- b) To the fullest extent allowed by law e.g., California Insurance Code §11580.04, the policy must be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured.
 - 1. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is \$1,000,000 or more must include liability arising out of: (a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf, (b) Your products, (c) Your work, e.g., your completed operations performed by you or on your behalf, or (d) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.
 - 2. The additional insured coverage for projects for which the Engineer's Estimate is less than \$1,000,000 must include liability arising out of: (a) Ongoing operations performed by you or on your behalf, (b) Your products, or (c) premises owned, leased, controlled, or used by you.

7-3.5.1.2 Primary and Non-Contributory Coverage. The policy must be endorsed to provide that the coverage with respect to operations, including the completed operations, if appropriate, of the Named Insured is primary to any insurance or self-insurance of the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives. Further, it must provide that any insurance maintained by the City and its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives must be in excess of the Contractor's insurance and must not contribute to it.

7-3.5.1.3 Project General Aggregate Limit. The policy or policies must be endorsed to provide a Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit that will apply only to the Work. Only claims payments which arise from the Work must reduce the Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit. The Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit must be in addition to the aggregate limit provided for the products-completed operations hazard.

7-3.5.2 Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance.

7-3.5.2.1 Additional Insured. Unless the policy or policies of Commercial Auto Liability Insurance are written on an ISO form CA 00 01 12 90 or a later version of this form or equivalent form providing coverage at least as broad, the policy must be endorsed to include the City and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives as additional insured, with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by you or on your behalf. This endorsement is limited to the obligations permitted by California Insurance Code §11580.04.

7-4 WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE. DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

7-4.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance.

a) In accordance with the provisions of §3700 of the California Labor Code, you must provide at its expense Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employers Liability Insurance to protect you against all claims under applicable state workers compensation laws. The City, its elected officials, and employees will not be responsible for any claims in law or equity occasioned by your failure to comply with the requirements of this section.

b) Limits for this insurance must be not less than the following:

Workers' Compensation	Statutory Employers Liability		
-			
Bodily Injury by Accident	\$1,000,000 each accident		
Bodily Injury by Disease	\$1,000,000 each employee		
Bodily Injury by Disease	\$1,000,000 policy limi		

c) By signing and returning this contract you certify that you are aware of the provisions of §3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code and you will comply with such provisions before commencing the Work as required by § 1861 of the California Labor Code.

7-4.1.1 Waiver of Subrogation. The policy or policies must be endorsed to provide that the insurer will waive all rights of subrogation against the City, and its respective elected officials, officers, employees, agents, and representatives for losses paid under the terms of the policy or policies and which arise from work performed by the Named Insured for the City.

7-9 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF EXISTING IMPROVEMENTS. ADD the following:

In any emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at its discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Any change in Contract Price or Contract Time resulting from emergency work shall be determined as provided in SECTION 3, "CHANGES IN WORK."

7-15 INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety and SUBSTITUTE with the following:

ADD: 7-15 INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, protect, and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, and employees, from and against all claims asserted, or liability established for damages or injuries to any person or property resulting from the Contractor's action or failure to take the necessary measures to prevent such damages and injuries.

The Contractor shall be responsible for payment of any fines resulting from citations issued to the City by either the federal, state, or local environmental and safety enforcement agencies due to the Contractor's failure to abide by applicable safety, health, and environmental standards.

SECTION 8 - FACILITIES FOR AGENCY PERSONNEL

8-2 FIELD OFFICE FACILITIES. To the City Supplement, DELETE in its entirety.

PART 2 - CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

SECTION 210 – PAINT AND PROTECTIVE COATINGS

ADD: 210-6 Anti-graffiti Coating. Anti-graffiti coating shall be as manufactured by Monopole,

Inc. (or approved equal).

Materials shall be applied as specified below:

a)	1 st Coat:	Aquaseal ME12 (Item 5200)
b)	2 nd Coat:	Permashield Base (Item 6100)
c)	3 rd Coat:	Permashield Premium (Item 5600 for matte finish or Item 5650 for gloss finish)
d)	4th Coat:	Permashield Premium (Item 5600 for matte finish or Item 5650 for gloss finish)

END OF SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIAL PROVISIONS (SSP)

TECHNICALS

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS

I. TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

A. CONTRACT SITE LOCATIONS

Hardwood gymnasium flooring shall be installed at various job sites:

- Colina Del Sol Recreation Center 5319 Orange Ave. San Diego, CA 92115 Contact: Keith Selby, Area Manager, at (619) 235-1145
- Encanto Recreation Center
 6508 Wunderlin Ave.
 San Diego, CA 92114
 Contact: Carlos Rios, Area Manager, at (619) 527-3416
- North Park Recreation Center 4044 Idaho St. San Diego, CA 92104 Contact: Gordon Bordson, Area Manager, at (619) 235-1161

Approximate Square Footage for all recreation centers is 13,425. Contractor is responsible for verifying measurements.

B. <u>SAMPLES</u>

Samples of each type of hardwood flooring may be required by the Contract Administrator for evaluation purposes prior to award. If required, they shall be provided at no cost to the City within five (5) days of request. Samples will be returned upon Bidder's request at Bidder's expense.

C. OWNER'S MANUAL

An Owner's Manual which shall be given to the Contract Administrator at completion of project and shall include Manufacturer's literature on care, cleaning, and maintenance of the hardwood gymnasium flooring.

D. PRODUCT DELIVERY AND STORAGE

1. <u>Delivery of Materials</u>: Flooring materials and accessories shall be delivered in original, unbroken packages, containers, or wrappings, bearing the name of the Manufacturer along with identification markings. Contractor shall not deliver material to site locations until all concrete repairs (if any) or any other wet work is complete and cured to a condition of equilibrium where temperature and humidity are maintained at the occupancy levels of the gymnasium. This requirement is most critical for wood flooring material.

- 2. <u>Storage:</u> Products shall be stored in conformance with reference standards with seals and labels intact and legible.
 - Products which are subject to damage by the elements shall be stored in weathertight enclosures. <u>Storage is not available on site.</u>

E. <u>PROJECT CONDITIONS</u>

1. Temperature and humidity within the gymnasium shall be maintained within the ranges required by the wood flooring manufacture.

F. MATERIALS

Contractor shall submit three (3) copies of manufacturer's data on all listed materials within 5 days of bid award to the Contract Administrator for review and approval prior to ordering and purchasing materials.

1. Wood Flooring: Wood Flooring shall be Northern Hard Maple (Acer Saccharum) solid strip wood flooring material, Grade: 2nd and better, size: 25/32 inch x 2 ¼ inches. Wood may contain defects common to maple, but wood must be firm and serviceable, with tongued-and-grooved plus end matching. All materials shall be new and meet the Manufacturer's recommendation for use on gymnasium floors. Wood flooring system shall be Actioncush II with Engineered Sleepers as manufactured by Action Floor Systems, LLC. The engineered sleepers shall be 1-1/2" x 2-1/2" x 96" with an Air Tech II, 7/16" 100% Natural Rubber Pad factory attached. Sleeper shall allow for lineal integration. No reconstituted granular pads or PVC pads shall be accepted.

Contractor shall ensure that the moisture content at time of delivery is 6 to 9 %, with a maximum of 12% for any one piece and no more than plus or minus 5% outside of a given range. The maximum of 13% may be allowed along United States coastal areas in the summer.

Contractor shall condition wood for five (5) days prior to the start of installation by placing in spaces to receive flooring and maintaining ambient temperature between 65° F to 75° F (18° C to 24° C) before, during and after installation.

Contractor shall open sealed packages of wood flooring to permit natural adjustment of moisture content and allow flooring to acclimate to room conditions.

Both hardwood and sub flooring materials shall be certified by the Maple Flooring Manufacture Association as Air Quality Green Label Plus. A copy of all certifications and specifications of materials offered shall be submitted within 5 days from bid award.

Contractor shall provide and install all accessory materials per wood flooring manufacturer's specifications necessary for a complete installation of the approved wood flooring system. This may include, but not be limited to, moisture barriers, resilient pads, sub-floor fasteners and metal channels.

- 2. **Door Thresholds**: Door thresholds shall be commercial grade heavy-duty aluminum and shall meet Americans with Disability Act (ADA) requirements.
- 3. **Wood Flooring Finish**: Wood floor sealer shall be Bonaseal water based acrylic resin as manufactured by Bona or approved equal. Wood flooring finish shall be Bona Mega gloss water based polyurethane finish as manufactured by Bona or approved equal. Water based sealer and water based finish shall be compatible for use together.
- 4. **Game Line Paint**: Game line paint shall be compatible with wood flooring sealant and finish.
- 5. **Game Post Sleeves**: Game post floor sleeves for volleyball posts shall be a minimum of 9" deep and minimum 3" I.D. constructed of brass. The cover plates shall be hinged chromed steel or heavy cast brass and shall be lockable. The post sleeve and cap shall be as manufactured by Sports Imports, Model KA25, or an approved equal.
- 6. **Volleyball Posts**: Contractor shall provide one set of volleyball game posts for each recreation center, compatible with the existing floor sleeves to remain and the new floor sleeves to be installed. Post shall be have telescoping height adjustment with worm drive winch and shall be constructed of high-strength aluminum. The volleyball game posts shall be as manufactured by Sports Imports, Model AL7, or an approved equal.
- 7. Volleyball Nets: Contractor shall provide three volleyball nets. Nets shall be 32' in length and 1 meter (39") wide with black nylon mesh measuring 4" by 4" square. Nets shall have white double thickness binding on all four sides with ends capable of accepting wooden dowels. There shall be a 3/16" diameter steel cable, 46' in length, through the top of the net and a continuous nylon rope 44' in length through the bottom of the net. The net shall also include net-locks with covers and Velcro sideline markers. Volleyball nets shall be as supplied by Sports Imports, Model VP2032S, or an approved equal.
- 8. Vent Cove Wall Base: Vent cove wall base shall be manufactured from a homogeneous composition of 100% synthetic rubber to meet the performance requirements of ASTM F-1861, Type TS, Group 1 (solid) Standard Specification for Resilient Wall Base. The vent cove wall base shall be designed for hardwood floating floor construction and be equipped with grooved vertical, semi-circular vents, (15 vents per 4' of length) along the back side of the wall base to ensure proper air circulation under the floor and permit free expansion of the floor. Vent cove wall base shall be a minimum of 4" in height, 5/16" thick covered profile with a 3" long by 3/8" thick toe. Vent cove wall base shall be black. Vent cove wall base shall be as manufactured by Johnsonite or an approved equal.

G. <u>WARRANTY</u>

Flooring materials shall have one (1) year Non-Prorated Warranty. Warranty coverage shall include, but not be limited to, bulking, warping, squeaking, loosening, excessive open joints, cracks, deterioration of finish beyond normal surface wear. Copies of all

product warranties shall be submitted to the Contract Administrator upon completion of the project.

In addition to the Manufacturer's warranty on material, the City requires all installation work performed by the Contractor shall be covered by a one (1) year warranty against defects in material and workmanship. Any recurrence of maintenance problems due to defects in such material or workmanship within this time frame shall be repaired or replaced by the Contractor immediately at no additional cost to the City. Any material or labor furnished by Contractor to correct Contractor deficiencies shall likewise bear a one (1) year warranty from the date of acceptance by the City, notwithstanding the termination of the contract.

H. WOOD FLOORING REMOVAL

- 1. Prior to wood flooring removal, the contractor shall note the existing game line marking locations, colors and court logos that shall be repainted onto the new floor. The center court logo at each gymnasium shall be neatly removed and braced to preserve the logo. The removed logos shall be turned over to the Area Manager or Contract Administrator for safe storage. These removed logos will not be reinstalled into the new gym floor.
- 2. Contractor shall completely remove existing wood floor and sub-floor supports in each gymnasium including, but not limited to, all dust, dirt, and foreign materials and dispose of all debris and materials. All wall bases shall be removed. Door thresholds shall be removed and replaced as necessary to accommodate the removal of the existing gymnasium floor and installation of the new flooring material.
- 3. Sub floor Upon removal of the existing wood flooring at each gymnasium, Contractor shall inspect concrete substrate with the Contract Administrator to confirm satisfactory conditions prior to starting installation of new wood gymnasium.
- 4. The Colina Del Sol Recreation Center gymnasium floor is supported by a wooden subfloor structure. Prior to demolition of the existing gymnasium floor, the contractor shall mark "soft spots" identified by the Area Manager. These "soft spots" may require additional sub floor bracing to be installed by the contractor at no additional cost.

I. WOOD FLOORING INSTALLATION

Contractor shall apply moisture barrier over concrete substrate or sub floor as recommended by flooring manufacturer.

All materials shall be installed by qualified wood/flooring layers under proper supervision of the Contractor, in strict conformance to the Manufacturer's written instructions.

- 1. Floor Surface Preparation
 - a. All holes, pits, irregularities, and cracks in the concrete substrate shall be repaired and patched as necessary, to provide a smooth even floor surface, for the

proper installation of the new wood gymnasium flooring in accordance with the Manufacture's specifications.

- b. At the Colina del Sol Recreation Center, the wooden subfloor shall be inspected and additional bracing, blocking and shims be installed to ensure proper installation of the new wood flooring.
- c. Contractor shall be responsible for providing an acceptable substrate for the specified floor installation. The Contractor Administrator shall evaluate repairs recommended prior to the Contractor proceeding with repair work. Prior written approval by the Contract Administrator is required for the city to authorize recommended repairs at the City's expense.
- d. Doors and other locations where flooring adjoins higher, dissimilar flooring, floated filler material shall be ramped at slopes not to exceed 1:96.
- e. Moisture testing of the concrete substrate shall be performed prior to installation to verify slab moisture is within the specified range of the wood flooring manufacturer.
- 2. <u>Sub-floor</u>

Contractor shall supply 1-1/2" x 2-1/2" x 96" engineered sleepers. Each shall have 7/16" 100% natural rubber pads factory attached to the sleeper. No reconstituted granular rubber or PVC pad shall be accepted.

3. <u>Wood Flooring</u>

The sub-floor shall be installed in strict accordance with the Manufacturer's specifications. Contractor shall install sleepers at right angles to finish flooring 9" on-center for 25/32" flooring; space ends 1/4" and offset joints 24" in adjacent rows.

The finish maple flooring shall be installed in accordance with the Manufacturer's specifications. The maple flooring shall not be installed until the flooring has acclimated to the building conditions and the moisture content compatible with the normally expected environmental range of temperature and relative humidity achieved while the facility is occupied.

- a. The wood shall be installed within the allowable temperature range in accordance with the Manufacturer's specifications.
- b. The wood shall be laid complete with all necessary accessories such as transition pieces, metal or composite edging, etc.
- c. If required, size joints between flooring strips to allow for intermediate expansion in accordance with local humidity conditions. In lieu of expansion gaps, the installer may also use maple manufactured with ERT (Expansion Ridge Technology).
- d. Contractor shall provide expansion voids at perimeter and at all vertical obstructions as recommended by wood floorings manufacturer.

Contactor shall install maple flooring by power nailing or stapling at sleeper intersection with end joints properly driven up. If required, size joints between flooring strips to allow for intermediate expansion in accordance with local humidity conditions.

Contractor shall obtain flooring of each type from a single manufacturer or source to ensure a match of quality, color, pattern, and texture.

J. BASE INSTALLATION

Contractor shall install rubber vent cove base with pre molded corners per the manufacturer's recommendations. For areas where obstructions prevent the installation of a full height cove base, the contactor shall use a wall base that will fit within the restricted area.

K. <u>CLEANING</u>

The Contractor shall remove all excess and waste materials from the area of work and dispose of properly. The Contractor shall not use the existing trash facilities located on the premises.

- 1. <u>Cleaning and Protection</u>
 - a. After installation is complete, all dirt, debris, and unusable scraps shall be removed. All wood flooring shall be cleaned of all spots with an appropriate cleaner.
 - b. Substantial coverings shall be provided, as necessary, to protect the installed products from damage from traffic and subsequent construction operations. Protection shall be removed for City's inspection as requested.

L. GAME SLEEVES AND POSTS

Existing concrete floor shall be core drilled to install new game sleeves for volleyball at Encanto Recreation Center. The existing game sleeves at North Park Recreation Center shall be reused with the sleeve lids cleaned and polished. All moisture in concrete slab due to core drilling shall be thoroughly dried prior to installation of flooring system. Game sleeves shall be installed to ensure that floor plates are flush with the finish floor surface. Game sleeves installed at the Colina Del Sol Recreation Center shall be blocked as required in the subfloor structure to provide a sturdy game sleeve.

M. <u>FINISHING</u>

- 1. <u>Wood Flooring</u>
 - a. Contractor shall machine sand gymnasium floor to ensure a smooth, even and uniform surface.
 - b. Remove sanding dust from entire surface by tack or vacuum or as recommended by the sealer and finish manufacturer.

- c. Inspect entire area of floor to insure that surface is acceptable for finishing, clean and completely free from sanding dust.
- d. Apply one (1) coat of approved sealer and four (4) coats of approved finish in accordance with manufacture's instructions.
- e. Buff and clean floor between coats.
- 2. <u>Game Lines</u>
 - a. Contractor shall apply game lines markings between sealer coat and first coat of finish.

The game lines marking shall be the same colors as currently exist for the various court markings.

Paint game lines after floor sealer has completely cured and allow game line paint to completely dry prior to applying four (4) coats of polyurethane finish.

- b. Court markings shall be as outlined below. The Contractor shall layout game lines and obtains approval from the Contract Administrator prior to painting game lines.
 - 1) Colina Del Sol Recreation Center All game lines (basketball, volleyball and badminton), logo at center court and basketball key painting shall match the existing court markings.
 - 2) Encanto Recreation Center All game lines (basketball and volleyball), logo at center court and basketball key painting shall match the existing court markings except only one 3-point basketball arc shall be painted. A free throw line for the 10 and under division of basketball shall be added to the basketball key as directed by the Contract Administrator.
 - 3) North Park Recreation Center All game lines (basketball and volleyball) and basketball key painting shall match the existing court markings. The letters NPRC, for North Park Recreation Center, shall be painted in the center circle of the basketball court. The letters shall be of sufficient size to span the diameter of the circle, leaving approximately 4" between the first and last letters and the center circle stripe.

N. FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Scope of Work shall not be completed until final approval signature by the Contract Administrator, or designee, is obtained. Warranty period shall start on the date approval signature is obtained.

APPENDIX A

NEPA/ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT


U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development San Francisco Regional Office - Region IX 600 Harrison Street San Francisco, California 94107-1387

LEVEL OF ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW DETERMINATION

Project Name / Description: Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement. Project would replace the full gymnasium hardwood floors at the Colina Del Sol, Encanto and North Park Recreation Centers which are estimated to be over 20 years. See attached detailed scope. Grant Number: B-11-MC-06-0542

Level of Environmental Review (cite regulation):

Exempt per 58.34 (a)(4)

(Exempt per 24 CFR 58.34, Categorically excluded not subject to statutes per § 58.35(b), Categorically excluded subject to statutes per § 58.35(a), Environmental Assessment per § 58.36, or EIS per 40 CFR 1500)

STATUTES and REGULATIONS listed at 24 CFR 58.6 FLOOD INSURANCE / FLOOD DISASTER PROTECTION ACT

1. Does the project involve the acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of structures?

No; flood insurance is not required. The review of this factor is completed.

Yes; continue.

2. Is the structure or part of the structure located in a FEMA designated Special Flood Hazard Area?

No. Source Document (FEMA/FIRM floodplain zone designation, panel number, date):

(Factor review completed.)

Yes. Source Document (FEMA/FIRM floodplain zone designation, panel number, date):

(Continue review.)

3. Is the community participating in the National Insurance Program?

Yes - Flood Insurance under the National Flood Insurance Program must be obtained and maintained for the

economic life of the project, in the amount of the total project cost.

No (Federal assistance may not be used in the Special Flood Hazards Area).

COASTAL BARRIERS RESOURCES ACT

1. Is the project located in a coastal barrier resource area?

No; Cite Source Documentation:

There are no coastal barriers in the State of California.

(This element is completed).

Yes - Federal assistance may not be used in such an area.

AIRPORT RUNWAY CLEAR ZONES AND CLEAR ZONES DISCLOSURES

1. Does the project involve the sale or acquisition of existing property within a Civil Airport's Runway Clear Zone, Approach Protection Zone or a Military Installation's Clear Zone?

No; cite Source Document, page:

The project does not involve the sale or acquisition of existing property.

Project complies with 24 CFR 51.303(a)(3).

Yes; **Disclosure statement must be provided** to buyer and a copy of the signed disclosure statement must be maintained in this Environmental Review Record.

Myra Herrmann, Senior Planner **Development Servicres Department** Signature Preparer Name/Title Beth Murray, Deputy Director **Economic Development Division** Approval Name/Title Signature

APPENDIX B

SAMPLE CITY INVOICE

City of San Diego, Field Engineering Div., 9485 Aero Drive, SD CA 92123							Contractor's Name:				
Project	Name:					Contractor's Address:					
SAP No	o. (WBS/IO/CC)										
City Pu	rchase Order No.					Contractor's Phone #: Invoice No.					
Resider	nt Engineer (RE):					Contractor's Fax #: Invoice Date:					
RE Pho	ne#•	RE Fax#:				Contact I	Vame.		Billing P	eriod	
		КЕ Галя.	Contra	ct Authorizati	on		Estimate	This E	stimate	Totals t	n Date
Item #	Item Description	Unit	Qty	Price	Extension		Amount			% / OTY	Amount
1	2 Parallel 4" PVC C900	LF	1,380	\$34.00	\$46,920.00	/0/211	mount	/0/ 211	mount	/0/ 211	1 iniount
-	48" Primary Steel Casing	LF	500	\$1,000.00	\$500,000.00						
3	2 Parallel 12" Secondary Steel	LF	1,120	\$53.00	\$59,360.00						
-			, -		+++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++++						
4	Construction and Rehab of PS 49	LS	1	\$150,000.00	\$150,000.00						
5	Demo	LS	1	\$14,000.00	\$14,000.00						
6	Install 6' High Chain Link Fence	LS	1	\$5,600.00	\$5,600.00						
7	General Site Restoration	LS	1	\$3,700.00	\$3,700.00						
8	10" Gravity Sewer	LF	10	\$292.00	\$2,920.00						
9	4" Blow Off Valves	EA	2	\$9,800.00	\$19,600.00	1					
10	Bonds	LS	1	\$16,000.00	\$16,000.00						
	Field Orders	AL	1	80,000	\$80,000.00						
11.1	Field Order 1	LS	5,500	\$1.00	\$5,500.00						
11.2	Field Order 2	LS	7,500	\$1.00	\$7,500.00						
11.2	Field Order 3	LS	10,000	\$1.00	\$10,000.00						
11.4	Field Order 4	LS	6,500	\$1.00	\$6,500.00						
	Certified Payroll	LS	0,500	\$1,400.00	\$1,400.00						
12	CHANGE ORDERS	1.5	1	\$1,400.00	\$1,400.00						
Change		4,890									
Items 1	e Order 1	4,890			\$11,250.00						
	-4 Deduct Bid Item 3	LF	120	-\$53.00	(\$6,360.00)						
	e Order 2	LF 160,480	120	-\$53.00	(\$0,300.00)						
Items 1		100,400			\$95,000.00						
	-5 Deduct Bid Item 1	LF	380	-\$340.00	(\$12,920.00)						
	Encrease bid Item 9	LF	<u> </u>	\$9,800.00							
	e Order 3 (Close Out)	-121,500	0	\$2,000100							
	Deduct Bid Item 3		53	-500.00	(\$26,500.00)						
	Deduct Bid Item 4	LS	-1	45,000.00							
Items 3	-9		1	-50,500.00	(\$50,500.00)						
								Total			
1	SUMMARY							This	\$ -	Total Billed	\$0.00
A. Original Contract Amount							Ret	ention an	d/or Escro	w Payment Sche	dule
B. App	roved Change Order 1 Thru 3						Total Rete	ntion Requ	ired as of	this billing	
	al Authorized Amount (A+B)									PO or in Escrow	
	al Billed to Date									Transfer in Escrow	:
	Total Retention (5% of D)									com PO/Escrow:	-
	Total Previous Payments						Ann to Ke		mu actor II	om i O/Esciuw.	
	•					Contract	or Signator	ro and Da	to•		
·	ment Due Less Retention					Contract	or Signatu	e anu Da			
H. Remaining Authorized Amount											

City of San Diego

ADDENDUM "A"



FOR

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS

BID NO.:	K-13-5759-DBB-1-A
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	12003890
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	1714
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	CITYWIDE
PROJECT TYPE:	GF
CDBG #:	B-11-MC-06-0542

For which proposals will be received at the Public Works Contracting Group, 1010 Second Avenue, Suite 1400, MS 614C, San Diego, California, 92101 until **2:00 PM on** <u>November 27, 2012</u>.

A. CHANGES TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The following changes to the Contract Documents are hereby made effective as though originally issued with the bid package. Bidders are reminded that all previous requirements to this solicitation remain in full force and effect.

B. CLARIFICATION:

1. PRE - BID CONFERENCE: Meeting location will be held at the same location in the Public Works Contracting Group, Conference Room at 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92101 at 10:00 AM, on NOVEMBER 07, 2012.

C. VOLUME 1:

1. To Volume 1 Contract Documents, All references of 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200, MS 56P, San Diego, CA 92101, **DELETE** in their entirety and **SUBSTITUTE** with the following:

1010 Second Avenue, Suite 1400, MS 614C, San Diego, CA 92101.

Tony Heinrichs, Director Public Works Department

Dated: *November 1, 2012,* San Diego, California

TH/nb/ds/rir

City of San Diego

ADDENDUM "B"



FOR

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS

BID NO.:	K-13-5759-DBB-1-A
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	12003890
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	1714
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	CITYWIDE
PROJECT TYPE:	GF
CDBG #:	B-11-MC-06-0542

For which proposals will be received at the Public Works Contracting Group, 1010 Second Avenue, Suite 1400, MS 614C, San Diego, California, 92101 until **2:00 PM on** <u>November 27, 2012</u>.

A. CHANGES TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The following changes to the Contract Documents are hereby made effective as though originally issued with the bid package. Bidders are reminded that all previous requirements to this solicitation remain in full force and effect.

B. VOLUME 1:

- 1. To Funding Agency Provisions, Item 10 Wage Rates, page 25, **DELETE** in its entirety and **SUBSTITUTE** with the following:
 - **10. WAGE RATES**. This contract shall be subject to the following Davis-Bacon Wage Decisions:
 - [Wage Determination Number: CA120001]
 - [Modification Number: **12**]
 - [Publication Date: **11/16/12**]

The required wage information may be accessed and downloaded from: <u>http://www.wdol.gov/</u>

Tony Heinrichs, Director Public Works Department

Dated: *November 16, 2012,* San Diego, California

TH/nb/ds/rir

JOHNSON FLOORING

20001/0004



15年1月1日	Nile States States
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ÖHMBCM FL	i Dominoi. Ima.

11643 RIVERSIDE DRIVE SUITE 119 LAKESIDE, CA 92040 PHONE: (619) 596-2586 FAX: (619) 596-2586 CA LIC.# 790233

12-04-12

- + Q

City of San Diego 1200 3rd Ave., Ste 200 San Diego, Ca 92101

Attn: Toni Thompson

Ro: Bid # K-13-5759-DBB-1-A Bid Tabulation

Toni,

I have reviewed the tabulated total for bid #K-13-5759-DBB-1-A and the total is in fact \$206,325.50 as you stated and NOT \$ 206,365.00.

Please accept this as confirmation that the re-tabulated total of \$206,325.50 is correct and agreeable.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or comments.

Regards 12-4-12

Kevin Johnson President Johnson Flooring, Inc.



THE GITY OF SAN DIEGO

Purchasing and Contracting Department Contracting Division 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92101 (619) 236-6000

FAX TRANSMITTAL

Date: Decembor 3, 2012

The following pages are intended for:

To:	Estimator	From:	Toni Thompson
Company:	Johnson Flooring	Division:	Contracting Division
FAX #	619-596-2585	FAX #	619-236-5904
Phone #	619-596-2580	Phone #	619-235-5733

RE: Bid # K-13-5759-DBB-1-A Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement - Three Locations

COMMENTS: In tabulating the bid results of subject project, we have found that the ESTIMATED TOTAL BASE BID is \$206,365.00. NOT \$206,325.50 as per your bid. Please FAX acknowledgement/concurrence of the correct amount, by 10:00am today.

If there are any problems with receiving this FAX transmission (such as missing pages), please contact the Sender at the "From" phone number given above.

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED, AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, RECEIPT BY AN UNINTENDED RECEPTION DUES NOT CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF ANY APPLICABLE PRIVILEGE.

If the render of this message is not the injoined realpient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissomination, distribution or copying of this communication is subty prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notity us immediately by telephone, and return the original message to us at the above address via the U.S. Postal Service.

062585 JOHNSON FLOORING 12/4/2012 8:41:28 AM PAGE

3/005

PROPOSAL (BID)

The Bidder agrees to the construction of RECREATION CENTER GYM FLOOR REPLACEMENT - THREE LOCATIONS. for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days (90 days for federally funded contracts and contracts valued at \$500,000 or less) from the date of Bid opening to Award of the Contract. The duration of the Contract Price guarantees shall be extended by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all conditions precedent e.g., bond and insurance.

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Bescription	Unit Price	Extension			
	BASE BID									
I	1	LS	238330	2-4.1	Bonds (Payment and Performance)	$>\!$	\$ 4500.00			
2	1	AL	238330	9-3.5	Field Orders - Type II Allowance	\sim	\$9,000.00			
3	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Colina del Sol Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 4,950.00			
4	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Encanto Recreation Center	\$ 1.04	\$ 4,775.00			
5	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at North Park Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 3,700 00			
6	1	LS	238910	802-1.8	Disposal of construction and demolition Waste	\sim	\$ 3,000.00			
. 7	3	EA	238330	. 9-3.1	Volleyball posts, nets, post sleeves installed (one set per Recreation Center)	\$ 2,500.00	5 7,500.00			
8	750	LF	238330	9-3.1	Black Vent Cove Base installed	\$ 4.00	\$ 4,500.00			
9	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Door thresholds installed	\searrow	\$ 1,500.00			
10	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.	\$ 10+874	\$ 53800 50 53,846.00			
11	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Encanto Recreation Center installed.		\$			

14 Page

/2012 **y of**

2 8:31AM FAX San Dilego

6195962585 12/4/2012

JOHNSON FLOORING 8:41:28 AM PACE

4/005

ax Server

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Description	Unit Price	Extension
12	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at North Park Recreation Center installed.	\$ 11.08	s 40,994.00
13	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym foor game court striping and floor finishing at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.	\ge	\$ 5,000.00
14	1.	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at Encanto Recreation Center installed.	\mathbf{X}	\$ 5,000.00
15	1	LS	238330	9-3.I	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at North Park Recreation Center installed.	$\mathbf{\mathbf{X}}$	\$ 5,000.00
					ESTIMATED TO	TAL BASE BID	5000

206,325.50 206,325.50 206,325.50 206,325.50 206,325.50 206,325.50

> 國 0004/0004 Fax Server

2/05/2012 8:31AM FAX City of San Diego

6195962585 12/4/200

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations



Purchasing and Contracting Department Contracting Division 1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200 San Diego, CA 92101 (619) 236-6000

THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO

FAX TRANSMITTAL

Date: December 3, 2012

The following pages are intended for:

То:	Estimator	From:	Toni Thompson
Company:	Johnson Flooring	Division:	Contracting Division
FAX #	619-596-2585	FAX #	619-236-5904
Phone #	619-596-2580	Phone #	619-235-5733

ł

RE: Bid # K-13-5759-DBB-1-A Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement - Three Locations

COMMENTS: In tabulating the bid results of subject project, we have found that the ESTIMATED TOTAL BASE BID is **\$206,365.00.** NOT **\$206,325.50** as per your bid. Please FAX acknowledgement/concurrence of the correct amount, by 10:00am today.

If there are any problems with receiving this FAX transmission (such as missing pages), please contact the Sender at the "From" phone number given above.

THIS MESSAGE IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL OR ENTITY TO WHICH IT IS ADDRESSED, AND MAY CONTAIN INFORMATION THAT IS PRIVILEGED, CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT FROM DISCLOSURE UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, RECEIPT BY AN UNINTENDED RECIPIENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A WAIVER OF ANY APPLICABLE PRIVILEGE.

If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify us immediately by telephone, and return the original message to us at the above address via the U.S. Postal Service.

PROPOSAL (BID)

The Bidder agrees to the construction of **RECREATION CENTER GYM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS**, for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days (90 days for federally funded contracts and contracts valued at \$500,000 or less) from the date of Bid opening to Award of the Contract. The duration of the Contract Price guarantee shall be extended by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all conditions precedent e.g., bond and insurance.

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Description	Unit Price	Extension				
	BASE BID										
1	1	LS	238330	2-4.1	Bonds (Payment and Performance)	\searrow	\$ 4500.00				
2	1	AL	238330	9-3.5	Field Orders – Type II Allowance	\sim	\$9,000.00				
3	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Colina del Sol Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 4,950.00				
4	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Encanto Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 4,775.00				
5	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at North Park Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 3,700.00				
6	1	LS	238910	802-1.8	Disposal of construction and demolition Waste	\searrow	\$ 3,000.00				
7	3	EA	238330	9-3.1	Volleyball posts, nets, post sleeves installed (one set per Recreation Center)	\$ 2,500.00	\$ 7,500.00				
8	750	LF	238330	9-3.1	Black Vent Cove Base installed	\$ 6.00	\$ 4,500.00				
9	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Door thresholds installed	\searrow	\$ 1,500.00				
10	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.	\$ 10.871	\$ 53806.KC 53,846.00				
11	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Encanto Recreation Center installed.	\$ 11.12	\$				

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations 14 Page

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Description	Unit Price	Extension
12	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at North Park Recreation Center installed.	\$ 11.08	\$ 40,994.00
13	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.	>	\$ 5,000.00
14	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at Encanto Recreation Center installed.	\geq	\$ 5,000.00
15	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at North Park Recreation Center installed.		\$ 5,000.00
					ESTIMATED TO	TAL BASE BID	\$206-365.00
	·	·	<u>.</u>				206325.5

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

Contractor's NAME: Johnson Glooring Inc. ADDRESS: 11643 Priveride Dr., STE 119 CARCETIL CA

CONTRACTOR'S NAME: <u>Johnson Looring</u> <u>Luc</u> ADDRESS: <u>11643</u> <u>Ziverile</u> <u>Dr.</u>, <u>stë</u> <u>19</u> <u>Luciile</u> <u>ca</u> <u>92040</u> TELEPHONE NO.: <u>619</u> <u>576</u> <u>576</u> FAX NO.: <u>619</u> <u>576</u> <u>576</u> CITY CONTACT: <u>Damian Singleton- Contract Specialist</u>, <u>Email: DSingleton@sandiego.gov</u>. <u>Phone No. (619) 235-5272, Fax No. (619) 236-5904</u>

JWinter/NB/RIR

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS



FOR

RECREATION CENTER GYMNASIUM FLOOR REPLACEMENT – THREE LOCATIONS

VOLUME 2 OF 2

BID NO.:	K-13-5759-DBB-1-A	
SAP NO. (WBS/IO/CC):	12003890	
CLIENT DEPARTMENT:	1714	
COUNCIL DISTRICT:	CITYWIDE	
PROJECT TYPE:	GF	
CDBG #:	B-11-MC-06-0542	

THIS CONTRACT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

- > FEDERAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CONTRACTING REQUIREMENTS
- > PREVAILING WAGE RATES: FEDERAL
- > APPRENTICE REQUIREMENTS
- THIS IS A CDBG-FUNDED CONTRACT THROUGH THE DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

THIS BIDDING DOCUMENT TO BE SUBMITTED IN ITS ENTIRETY REFER TO VOLUME I COVER PAGE FOR TIME, DATE, AND LOCATION

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Volume 2 - Bidding Documents

The following forms must be completed in their entirety and submitted with the Bid. Include the form(s) even if the information does not apply. Where the information does not apply write in N/A. Failure to include any of the forms may cause the Bid to be deemed **non-responsive**. If you are uncertain or have any questions about any required information, contact the City no later than 14 days prior to Bid due date.

DESCRIPTION

PAGE NUMBER

1.	Bid/Proposal	.5
2.	Bid Bond	6
3.	Non-Collusion Affidavit to be executed by Bidder and Submitted with Bid under 23 USC 112	
	and PCC 7106	7
4.	Contractors Certification of Pending Actions	8
	Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification of Compliance	
6.	Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure 1	0
7.	Instructions for Completion of SF-LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 1	1
8.	Disclosure of Lobbying Activities	3
9.	Proposal (Bid)	7
10.	Form AA35 - List of Subcontractors 1	8
11.	Form AA40 - Named Equipment/Material Supplier List 1	9

Table of Contents Volume 2 (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

PROPOSAL

Bidder's General Information

To the City of San Diego:

Pursuant to "Invitation to Bids", specifications, and requirements on file with the City Clerk, and subject to all provisions of the Charter and Ordinances of the City of San Diego and applicable laws and regulations of the United States and the State of California, the undersigned hereby proposes to furnish to the City of San Diego, complete at the prices stated herein, the items or services hereinafter mentioned. The undersigned further warrants that this bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding; that the bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder. or to secure any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed contract; that all statements contained in the bid are true; and, further, that the bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

The undersigned bidder(s) further warrants that bidder(s) has thoroughly examined and understands the entire Contract Documents (plans and specifications) and the Bidding Documents therefore, and that by submitting said Bidding Documents as its bid proposal, bidder(s) acknowledges and is bound by the entire Contract Documents, including any addenda issued thereto, as such Contract Documents incorporated by reference in the Bidding Documents.

A SOLE OWNER OR SOLE CONTRACTOR SIGNS HERE:

(1)	Name under which business i	is conducted		······

(2) Signature (Given and surname) of proprietor

Zip Code

(5) Telephone No. _____ Facsimile No. _____

'IF A PARTNERSHIP, SIGN HERE:

(1) Name under which business is conducted

(2) Name of each member of partnership [indicate character of each partner, general or special (limited):

Proposal (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement -- Three Locations

e,

n

,

•

,'

.

(3) Signature (Note: Signature must be made by a general partner)
Full Name and Character of partner
(4) Place of Business (Street & Number)
(4) Place of Business (Street & Number) (5) City and State Zip Code (6) Telephone No. Facsimile No.
(6) Tetephone No Pacsimile No
IF A CORPORATION, SIGN HERE:
(1) Name under which business is conducted Johnson Flooring The
(2) Signature, with official title of officer authorized to sign for the corporation:
(Signature)
(Printed Name)
President (Title of Officer)
(Impress Corporate Seal Her
(3) Incorporated under the laws of the State of
 (3) Incorporated under the laws of the State of <u>C4</u> (4) Place of Business (Street & Number) <u>11643</u> <u>Riverside</u> <u>Dr.</u>, <u>STE.</u> <u>116</u> (5) City and State <u>Louiceside</u> <u>CA</u> Zip Code <u>92040</u> (6) Telephone No. <u>619</u> <u>596</u> <u>5780</u> Facsimile No. <u>619</u> <u>596</u> <u>5585</u>
(5) City and State <u>Confectile</u> (CA Zip Code <u>Glober</u> (6) Telephone No 14 (G Sight Diff) Easymptote No. (a) G Sight Diff)
(b) receptione No. <u>and 346 asso</u> racsinite No. <u>and 310 25 55</u>
THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS MUST BE FILLED IN BY ALL PROPOSERS:
In accordance with the "INVITATION TO BIDS", the bidder holds a California State Contractor license for the following classification(s) to perform the work described in these specifications:
LICENSE CLASSIFICATION CIS
LICENSE NO. 790233 EXPIRES MAY 31 , 2 013
This license classification must also be shown on the front of the bid envelope. Failure to sho license classification on the bid envelope may cause return of the bid unopened.
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (TIN):
E-Mail Address: Keurn a johnson Ploosing. net

Proposal (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations 4 | Page

÷

:

THIS PROPOSAL MUST BE NOTARIZED BELOW:

I certify, under penalty of perjury, that the representations made herein regarding my State Contractor's license pumber, classification and expiration date are true and correct.

______Title Presilent Signature_

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, THIS ______ DAY OF _____,2____

Notary Public in and for the County of ______, State of ______

(NOTARIAL SEAL)

State of California County of San Diego Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this 26th day of November , 2012, by Kevin Johnson proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person() who appeared before me. **REBECCA C. JOHNSON** Commission # 1902735 Notary Public - California San Diego County My Comm. Expires Oct 1, 2014 Signature <u>Rebecca (. Johnsex</u> (Seal)

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,

That	Johnson Flooring, Inc.	as Principal, and
	SureTec Insurance Company	as Surety, are
held	and fir mly bound unto The City of San Di ego hereinafter called "O	WNER," in the sum of
<u>10%</u>	OF THE TOT AL BID AMOUNT for the payment of which sum, w	vell and truly to be made,
we b	ind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assig	gns, jointly and severally,
firml	ly by these presents.	

WHEREAS, said Principal has submitted a Bid to said OWNER to perform the WORK required under the bidding schedule(s) of the OWNER's Contract Documents entitled

Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement - Three Locations; Bld No. K-13-5759-DBB-1-A

NOW THEREFORE, if said Principal is awarded a contract by said OWNER and, within the time and in the manner required in the "Invitation to Bids" enters into a written Agreement on the form of agreement bound with said Contract Documents, furnishes the required certificates of insurance, and furnishes the required Performance Bond and Payment Bond, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. In the event suit is brought upon this bond by said OWNER and OWNER prevails, said Surety shall pay all costs incurred by said OWNER in such suit, including a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court.

SIGNED AND SEALED, this _	<u>19th</u>	day of	November	, 20_12
---------------------------	-------------	--------	----------	---------

Johnson Flooring, Inc.	(SEAL)
(Principal)	
By:	
(Signature)	

SureTec Insurance Company (SEAL) (Surety)

(Signature)Geoffrey Shelton, Attorney-in-Fact

(SEAL AND NOTARIAL ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SURETY)

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of California County of San Diego

On <u>November 19, 2012</u> before me, <u>Jamie Tofflemire, Notary Public</u>, personally appeared <u>Geoffrey Shelton</u>, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature -



(Seal)

POA #: 510093 - San Diego

SureTec Insurance Company LIMITED POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know All Men by These Presents, That SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY (the "Company"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Texas, and having its principal office in Houston, Harris County, Texas, does by these presents make, constitute and appoint

Dale Harshaw, Geoffrey Shelton, Tara Bacon, Bradley Orr, Kyle King

its true and lawful Attorney-in-fact, with full power and authority hereby conferred in its name, place and stead, to execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all bonds, recognizances, undertakings or other instruments or contracts of suretyship to include waivers to the conditions of contracts and consents of surety for:

Five Million and 00/100 Dollars (\$5,000,000.00)

and to bind the Company thereby as fully and to the same extent as if such bond were signed by the President, sealed with the corporate seal of the Company and duly attested by its Secretary, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the said Attorney-in-Fact may do in the premises. Said appointment shall continue in force until: 10/31/2013 and is made under and by authority of the following resolutions of the Board of Directors of the SureTec Insurance Company:

Be it Resolved, that the President, any Vice-President, any Assistant Vice-President, any Secretary or any Assistant Secretary shall be and is hereby vested with full power and authority to appoint any one or more suitable persons as Attorney(s)-in-Fact to represent and act for and on behalf of the Company subject to the following provisions:

Altorney-in-Fact may be given full power and authority for and in the name of and of behalf of the Company, to execute, acknowledge and deliver, any and all bonds, recognizances, contracts, agreements or indemnity and other conditional or obligatory undertakings and any and all notices and documents canceling or terminating the Company's liability thereunder, and any such instruments so executed by any such Attorney-in-Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if signed by the President and sealed and effected by the Corporate Secretary.

Be it Resolved, that the signature of any authorized officer and seal of the Company heretofore or hereafter affixed to any power of attorney or any certificate relating thereto by facsimile, and any power of attorney or certificate bearing facsimile signature or facsimile seal shall be valid and binding upon the Company with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached. (Adopted at a meeting held on 20^{th} of April, 1999.)

By:

In Witness Whereof, SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed by its President, and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed this 3rd day of September, A.D. 2010.

State of Texas County of Harris

On this 3rd day of September, A.D. 2010 before me personally came John Knox Jr., to me known, who, being by me duly sworn, did depose and say, that he resides in Houston, Texas, that he is President of SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY, the company described in and which executed the above instrument; that he knows the seal of said Company; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed by order of the Board of Directors of said Company; and that he signed his name thereto by like order.



facquelyn/ Maldonado, Notary Public My commission expires May 18, 2013

SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY

John Knoy Jr., President

I, M. Brent Beaty, Assistant Secretary of SURETEC INSURANCE COMPANY, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Power of Attorney, executed by said Company, which is still in full force and effect; and furthermore, the resolutions of the Board of Directors, set out in the Power of Attorney are in full force and effect.

Given under my hand and the seal of said Company at Houst	on, Texas this <u>19th</u> day of <u>November</u> , <u>2012</u> , A.D.
	M. Brent Beaty, Assistant Secretary

Any instrument issued in excess of the penalty stated above is totally void and without any validity. For verification of the authority of this power you may call (713) 812-0800 any business day between 8:00 am and 5:00 pm CST.

NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID UNDER 23 UNITED STATES CODE 112 AND PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 7106

ing first duly sworn, deposes and
the party making the foregoing
undisclosed person, partnership,
enuine and not collusive or sham;
y other bidder to put in a false or
nived, or agreed with any bidder
n bidding; that the bidder has not
munication, or conference with
fix any overhead, profit, or cost
any advantage against the public
ed contract; that all statements
rectly or indirectly, submitted his
or divulged information or data
rporation, partnership, company
t thereof to effectuate a collusive

Signed: win Jihnson, Dresident Title:

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ______day of _____,20___

Notary Public

(SEAL)

Non-collusion Affidavit (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

State of California County of <u>San Diego</u>

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on this <u>26th</u> day of <u>November</u>, 20<u>12</u>, by Kevin Johnson

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s)_who appeared before me.



CONTRACTORS CERTIFICATION OF PENDING ACTIONS

As part of its bid or proposal (Non-Price Proposal in the case of Design-Build contracts), the Bidder shall provide to the City a list of all instances within the past ten years where a complaint was filed or pending against the Bidder in a legal or administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers, and a description of the status or resolution of that complaint, including any remedial action taken.

CHECK ONE BOX ONLY.

- The undersigned certifies that within the past 10 years the Bidder has NOT been the subject of a complaint or pending action in a legal administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers.
- The undersigned certifies that within the past ten years the Bidder has been the subject of a complaint or pending action in a legal administrative proceeding alleging that Bidder discriminated against its employees, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers. A description of the status or resolution of that complaint, including any remedial action taken and the applicable dates is as follows:

Contractor Name: Johnson Flooring	The.
Certified By Kuin Johnson	Title Presi Lant
Name Signature	Date <u>11-26-12</u>

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

Contractors Certification of Pending Actions (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

			BIDDING DO	CUMENT	<u>s</u>		
EQUAL BEN CERTIFICAT				E 202 C Str	CITY OF QUAL BEN eet, MS 9/	: S AN D ie IEFITS P I A, San Di	
			MPANY INFORMA				
Company Name:		Floori			ntact Name;	/ YANVI	n Johnson
Company Address		Riversite	Br., STE	: 119 Col	ntact Phone	619	596 2580
UA Keride	CA	92040		Cor	ntact Email:	levn d	johnsin Hoor
Contract Titles 2			ITRACT INFORM		didt	Data	
			Gym Floor				1-13
			K-13-5759 - BENEFITS ORDII				4-13
 Benefits inc child care; t Any benefit Contractor sha open enrolim Contractor sha 	clude health, dent travel/relocation e not offer an empl all post notice of f tent periods. all allow City acce	tal, vision insuran expenses; employ loyee with a spou firm's equal benei ess to records, wh	es with spouses and ice; pension/401(k) wee assistance progr ise, is not required to fits policy in the worl nen requested, to co <i>npliance</i> , signed unc	olans; bereav ams; credit ur b be offered to kplace and no nfirm complia	ement, fami nion membe o an employ otify employe nce with EB	lý, parenta rship; or a ee with a ees at time O requirer	al leave; discounts, iny other benefit. domestic partner. e of hire and during ments.
NOTE: This summ	nary is provided f		Full text of the EB				
www.sandiego.gov		ACTOR EQUAL	BENEFITS ORDI	NANCE CE	RTIFICATI	ON	
Please indicate you			e EBO. The City may				h.
. 🗹 Provi	ompliance with the des equal benefits des no benefits to employees.	is to spouses and	my firm <i>(contractor</i> domestic partners. lestic partners.	must <u>select o</u>	<u>nə</u> rəason):		
		ing agreement(s)	in place prior to Jan	uary 1, 2011,	that has no	t been ren	ewed or expired.
made a n the availa	easonable effort k ability of a cash eo	but is not able to quivalent for bene	l employees a cash provide equal benefi afits available to spo available benefits to	ts upon contr uses but not c	act award. I domestic par	agree to r	notify employees of
			ny false information administration of ar				or cash equivalent ode §22.4307(a)]
that my firm unders	stands the require	ements of the Equ	alifornia, I certify the ual Benefits Ordinan thorized by the City:	ce and will pr			
Kum C	Tohnstra	Presile	nt .	K	-		
N	ame/Title of Sign				Signature		
		FOR O	FFICIAL CITY US	EONLY			
Receipt Date:	EBO Analyst:		Approved	- Mat Am	proved – R		[

Equal Benefits Ordinance Certification of Compliance (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

.

.

.

,

"

,

9 | Page

ł

1

:

•••

۰,

LOBBY PROHIBITION, CERTIFICATION AND DISCLOSURE

In acknowledgment that funds received under this agreement have been provided pursuant to a Federal grant, recipient hereby recognizes the prohibitions against lobbying the Federal government with any of these funds. Recipient agrees that it shall comply with the laws set forth at 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (1989) and 24 C.F.R. part 87, to wit:

A. <u>Conditions on use of funds</u>

Recipient shall not expend any funds received pursuant to this agreement to pay any person to influence an officer or employee of Federal agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with any of the following Covered Federal actions:

- (1) The awarding of any federal contract
- (2) The making of any Federal grant
- (3) The making of any Federal Loan
- (4) The entering into of any cooperative agreement
- (5) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

For purposes of defining the terms of this part of the agreement, the definitions set forth in 24 C.F.R. § 87.105 are hereby adopted and incorporated herein by reference.

B. <u>Certification and Disclosure</u>

Each recipient at every tier under this agreement shall file a certification regarding lobbying, and a Disclosure Form-LLL, where required by 24 C.F.R. § 87.110. The certification form and Disclosure Form-LLL are attached to this agreement.

C. <u>Certifications must be filed:</u>

- (1) By any person upon each submission that initiates agency consideration for an award of a Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding \$100,000, or a Federal loan or loan guarantee exceeding \$150,000.
- (2) Upon receipt by any person of a Federal contract, grant, or cooperative agreement exceeding \$100,000, or upon receipt of a Federal loan or loan guarantee exceeding \$150,000.
- (3) By any person who requests or receives from a person referred to in subsections 1 and 2 of this paragraph:
 - a. A subcontract exceeding \$100,000 at any tier under a Federal contract;
 - b. A subgrant, contract or subcontract exceeding \$100,000 at any tier under a Federal grant;
 - c. A contract or subcontract exceeding \$100,000 at any tier under a Federal loan exceeding \$150,000;
 - d. A contract or subcontract exceeding \$100,000 at any tier under a Federal cooperative agreement.

D. <u>Disclosure Forms-LLL</u> must be filed in every instance when a person applies for, requests, or receives Federal appropriations exceeding \$100,000 pursuant to a contract, subcontract, grant, subgrant, loan, or cooperative agreement when such person has paid or expects to pay any sum, in cash or in kind, to influence or attempt to influence any officer or employee of an agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress. Further, Disclosure Form-LLL must be filed by recipients at any tier at the end of each calendar quarter in which there occurs any event that requires disclosure or materially affects information submitted in prior disclosures. Such events include;

- (1) 1. An increase of \$25,000 in the amount paid or expected to be paid for influencing or attempting to influence a covered Federal action;
- (2) 2. A change in the person(s) influencing or attempting to influence a covered action;
- (3) 3. A change in the officer(s), employee(s), or member(s) contacted to influence a covered action.

All disclosure Forms-LLL, but not certifications, shall be forwarded from tier to tier until received by the principal recipient, which in turn will file them with the appropriate Federal agency.

Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations 10 | Page

ł

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing, pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Use the SF-LLLA Continuation Sheet for additional information if the space on the form is inadequate. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this is a follow up report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred. Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be, a prime or subaward recipient. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing there port in item 4 checks "Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment, Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (item1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans, and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for Bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g., "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in item 4 or 5.
- 10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying entity engaged by the reporting entity identified in item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from
- 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name, and Middle Initial (MI).
 11. Enter the amount of compensation paid or reasonably expected to be paid by the reporting entity (item4) to the lobbying entity (item10). Indicate whether the payment has been made (actual) or will be made (planned). Check all boxes that apply. If this is a material change report, enter the cumulative amount of payment made or planned to be made.
- 12. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If payment is made through an in-kind contribution, specify the nature and value of the in-kind payment.
- 13. Check the appropriate box(es). Check all boxes that apply. If other, specify nature.
- 14. Provide a specific and detailed description of the services that the lobbyist has performed, or will be expected to perform, and the date(s) of any services rendered. Include all preparatory and related activity, not just time spent in actual contact with Federal officials. Identify the Federal official(s) or employee(s) contacted or the officer(s), employee(s), or Member(s) of Congress that were contacted.
- 15. Check whether or not a SF-LLLA Continuation Sheet(s) is attached.
- 16. The certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title, and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 30 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.

Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

• 1

÷

.

÷

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OMB Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 (See reverse for public burden disclosure)

0348-0046

1. Type of Federal Action: 2. Status of Federal Action: Image: Contract Image: Contract a. Grant Image: Contract b. Cooperative agreement b. initial award c. Loan c. post-award d. Loan guarantee c. Loan insurance	blication a, initial finding b, material change For Material Change Only year quarter date of last report		
4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:	5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name and Address of Prime:		
Johnson Flooring Tice. 1643 2Nerrinze or. H119 Congressional, District, if known: LAHEGILE on 92040	None Congressional District, if known:		
6. Federal Department/Agency:	7. Federal Program Name/Description:		
NA- 8. Federal Action Number, if known: None- 10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Entity (if individual, last name, first name, M)	N/A CFDA Number, <i>if applicable:</i> 9. Award Amount, if known: \$ Nove b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if different from No. 10a)		
	(last name, first name, MI):		
none	none		
	l st(s) SF-LLL4, (f necessary)		
11. Amount of Payment (check all that apply) \$	13. Type of Payment (check all that apply) □ a. retainer □ b. one-time lee □ c. commission □ d. contingent fee □ e. deforral □ f. other; specify;		
14. Brief Description of Services Performed or to be P	arformed and Date(s) of Service Including officer(s)		
analyzing (a) an Manhou(a) as the fact for Dayman	tinding tal in items 11.		
employee(s), or Member(s), contacted, for Paymer	it indicated in item 11:		
employee(s), or Member(s), contacted, for Paymer	it indicated in item 11:		
employee(s), or Member(s), contacted, for Paymer NOMA (attach Continuation Shee	tt indicated in item 11:		
employee(s), or Member(s), contacted, for Paymer NONL (attach Continuation Shee	nt indicated in item 11:		

Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

12 | Page

i

OMB0348-004	DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES CONTINUATION SHEET							
	of	Page	Flooring	Johnson	Reporting Entity:			
r Local Reproduction 1 - LLL-A	Authorized for	····-						

Lobby Prohibition, Certification and Disclosure (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

••

13 | Page

ļ

۰.

.

PROPOSAL (BID)

The Bidder agrees to the construction of **RECREATION CENTER GYM FLOOR REPLACEMENT** – **THREE LOCATIONS**, for the City of San Diego, in accordance with these contract documents for the prices listed below. The Bidder guarantees the Contract Price for a period of 120 days (90 days for federally funded contracts and contracts valued at \$500,000 or less) from the date of Bid opening to Award of the Contract. The duration of the Contract Price guarantee shall be extended by the number of days required for the City to obtain all items necessary to fulfill all conditions precedent e.g., bond and insurance.

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Description	Unit Price	Extension
					BASE BID		
1	1	LS	238330	2-4.1	Bonds (Payment and Performance)	\searrow	\$ 4500.00
2	1	AL	238330	9-3.5	Field Orders - Type II Allowance	\sim	\$9,000.00
3	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Colina del Sol Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 4,950.00
4	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at Encanto Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 4,775.00
5	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Removal of existing gym flooring, cove base and door thresholds at North Park Recreation Center	\$ 1.00	\$ 3,700 ,00
6	1	LS	238910	802-1.8	Disposal of construction and demolition Waste	\sim	\$ 3,000.00
7	3	EA	238330	9-3.1	Volleyball posts, nets, post sleeves installed (one set per Recreation Center)	\$ 2,500.00	\$ 7,500.00
8	750	LF	238330	9-3.1	Black Vent Cove Base installed	\$ 6.00	\$ 4,500.05
9	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Door thresholds installed	\searrow	\$ 1,500.00
10	4,950	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.	\$ 10.874	\$ 53876.60 53,846.00
11	4,775	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at Encanto Recreation Center installed.	\$ 11.12	\$ 53,098.00

Item	Quantity	Unit	NAICS	Payment Reference	Description	Unit Price	Extension
12	3,700	SF	238330	9-3.1	Wood, Northern Hard Maple, Acre saccharum or approved equal, at North Park Recreation Center installed.	\$ 11.08	\$ 40,994.00
13	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at Colina del Sol Recreation Center installed.		\$ 5,000.00
14	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at Encanto Recreation Center installed.		\$ 5,000.50
15	1	LS	238330	9-3.1	Gym floor game court striping and floor finishing at North Park Recreation Center installed.		\$ 5,000.00
					ESTIMATED TO	TAL BASE BID	\$206.305.00
							204325.50

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

TOTAL BID PRICE FOR BID (Items 1 through 15 inclusive) amount written in words: Two Hundred 5:x Thousand, Three Hundred Sixty Ere Dolland 6 00/100 (\$ 206, 365.00)

The Bid shall contain an acknowledgment of receipt of all addenda, the numbers of which shall be filled in on this Bid form.

List the Addenda received and being acknowledged: A B

If an addendum or addenda has been issued by the City and not noted as being received by the Bidder, the Bid shall be rejected as being non-responsive.

The names of all persons interested in the foregoing proposal as principals are as follows:

Kevin Johnson

IMPORTANT NOTICE: If Bidder or other interested person is a corporation, state secretary, treasurer, and manager thereof; if a co-partnership, state true name of firm, also names of all individual co-partners composing firm; if Bidder or other interested person is an individual, state first and last names in full.

Bidder: Johns	ion flo	oring In	6			
Title: Versin						
Business Address:				Lakesid	CA 92040	
Place of Business: _						
Place of Residence: _	ALPINE	, cA				
Signature:	\underline{P}^{-}	<u></u> .				

Proposal (BID) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

NOTES:

- A. The City shall determine the low Bid based on the Base Bid alone.
- B. Prices and notations shall be in ink or typewritten. All corrections (which have been initiated by the Bidder using erasures, strike out, line out, or "white-out") shall be typed or written in with ink adjacent thereto, and shall be initialed in ink by the person signing the bid proposal.
- C. Failure to initial all corrections made in the bidding documents shall cause the Bid to be rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for further consideration.
- D. Blank spaces must be filled in, using figures. Bidder's failure to submit a price for any Bid item that requires the Bidder to submit a price shall render the Bid **non-responsive** and shall be cause for its rejection.
- E. Unit prices shall be entered for all unit price items. Unit prices shall not exceed two (2) decimal places. If the Unit prices entered exceed two (2) decimal places, the City will only use the first two digits after the decimal points without rounding up or down.
- F. All extensions of the unit prices bid will be subject to verification by the City. In the case of inconsistency or conflict between the product of the Quantity x Unit Price and the Extension, the product shall govern.
- G. In the case of inconsistency or conflict, between the sums of the Extensions with the estimated total Bid, the sum of the Extensions shall govern.
- H. Bids shall not contain any recapitulation of the Work. Conditional Bids will be rejected as being **non-responsive**. Alternative proposals will not be considered unless called for.

Proposal (BD) (Rev. June 2011) Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

In accordance with the requirements provided in the "Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act", Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4 of the Public Contract Code, the Bidder shall list below the name and address of each Subcontractor who will perform work, labor, render services or specially fabricates and installs a portion [type] of the work or improvement, in an amount in excess of 0.5% of the Contractor's total Bid. The Bidder shall also list below the portion of the work which will be done by each subcontractor under this Contract. The Contractor shall list only one Subcontractor for each portion of the Work. The **DOLLAR VALUE** of the total Bid to be performed shall be stated for all subcontractors listed. Failure to comply with this requirement shall result in the Bid being rejected as **non-responsive** and ineligible for award. The Bidder's attention is directed to the Special Provisions - General; Paragraph 2-3 Subcontracts, which stipulates the percent of the Work to be performed with the Bidders' own forces. The Bidder shall list all SLBE, ELBE, DBE, DVBE, MBE, OBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, and SDVOSB Subcontractors that Bidders are seeking recognition towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF SUBCONTRACTOR	CONSTRUCTOR OR DESIGNER	TYPE OF WORK	DOLLAR VALUE OF SUBCONTRACT	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBF, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSBO	WHERE CERTIFIED@	CHECK IF JOINT VENTURE PARTNERSHIP
Name:						
Address:						
City: State: Zip: Phone:						
Name:			none			
Address: State:			Ale	· · · · · ·		
Zip: Phone:			Γ			
Name: Address: City: State: Zip: Phone:						

① As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Subcontractor as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):

Certified Minority Business Enterprise	MBE	Certified Woman Business Enterprise	WBE
Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise	DBE	Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise	DVBE
Other Business Enterprise	OBE	Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise	ELBE
Certified Small Local Business Enterprise	SLBE	Small Disadvantaged Business	SDB
Woman-Owned Small Business	WoSB	HUBZone Business	HUBZone
Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business	SDVOSB		
As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Subcontractor is ce	rtified by:		
City of San Diego	CITY	State of California Department of Transportation	CALTRANS
California Public Utilities Commission	CPUC	San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council	SRMSDC
State of California's Department of General Services	CADoGS	City of Los Angeles	LA
State of California	CA	U.S. Small Business Administration	SBA

The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation percentages if the Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE).

Form Title: LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS
 Form Number: AA35
 Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

0

(Rev. June 2011)

NAMED EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SUPPLIER LIST

The Bidder seeking the recognition of equipment, materials, or supplies obtained from Suppliers towards achieving any mandatory, voluntary, or both subcontracting participation percentages shall list the Supplier(s) on the Named Equipment/Material Supplier List. The Named Equipment/Material Supplier List, at a minimum, shall have the name, locations (City) and the **DOLLAR VALUE** of the Suppliers. The Bidder will be credited up to 60% of the amount to be paid to the Suppliers for such materials and supplies unless vendor manufactures or substantially alters materials and supplies in which case 100% will be credited. The Bidder is to indicate (Yes/No) whether listed firm is a supplier or manufacturer. In calculating the subcontractor participation percentages, vendors/suppliers will receive 60% credit of the listed **DOLLAR VALUE**, whereas manufacturers will receive 100% credit. If no indication provided, listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed dollar value for purposes of calculating the subcontractor Participation Percentage, Suppliers will receive 60% credit of the listed **DOLLAR VALUE**, whereas manufacturers will receive 100% credit. If no indication provided, listed firm will be credited at 60% of the listed **DOLLAR VALUE** for purposes of calculating the subcontractor participation percentages.

NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF VENDOR/SUPPLIER	MATERIALS OR SUPPLIES	DOLLAR VALUE OF MATERIAL OR SUPPLIES	SUPPLIER (Yes/No)	MANUFACTURER (Yes/No)	MBE, WBE, DBE, DVBE, OBE, ELBE, SLBE, SDB, WoSB, HUBZone, OR SDVOSB©	WHERE CERTIFIED@
Name: Poblins Sports Surfaces Address: 4777 Emlen AVE City: Cincinsti: State: 044 Zip: 45226 Phone: 513-571-8889	WOOD Flooring	\$100,000.00	yes	yes	none	n/4
Name:						
Name:						

O As appropriate, Bidder shall identify Vendor/Supplier as one of the following and shall include a valid proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE):

Certified Minority Business Enterprise	MBE	Certified Woman Business Enterprise	WBE
Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterprise	DBE	Certified Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise	DVBE
Other Business Enterprise	OBE	Certified Emerging Local Business Enterprise	ELBE
Certified Small Local Business Enterprise	SLBE	Small Disadvantaged Business	SDB
Woman-Owned Small Business	WoSB	HUBZone Business	HUBZone
Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business	SDVOSB		

② As appropriate, Bidder shall indicate if Vendor/Supplier is certified by:

City of San Diego	CITY	State of California Department of Transportation	CALTRANS
California Public Utilities Commission	CPUC	San Diego Regional Minority Supplier Diversity Council	SRMSDC
State of California's Department of General Services	CADoGS	City of Los Angeles	LA
State of California	CA	U.S. Small Business Administration	SBA

The Bidder will not receive any subcontracting participation percentages if the Bidder fails to submit the required proof of certification (except for OBE, SLBE and ELBE).

Form Title: NAMED EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SUPPLIER LIST Form Number: AA40 Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations (Rev. June 2011)

^{19 |} Page

LIST OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE

List items of the Work the Bidder made available to DBE firms. Identify those items of the Work the Bidder might otherwise perform with its own forces and those items that have been broken down into economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation. For each item listed, show the dollar amount and percentage of the Base Bid. The Bidder must demonstrate that enough work to meet the goal was made available to DBE firms.

ITEM OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE	NAICS CODE	BIDDER NORMALLY PERFORMS ITEM (Y/N)	ITEM BROKEN DOWN TO FACILITATE PARTICIPATION (Y/N)	AMOUNT	PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID
HORDBUCOD Flooring	36021	Ч	4	100 %	160 96
Floor MAINTENANCE & Repai	91025	Ч	y	100 14	(10 90
Flooring tempirany portable	80547	y	y	100 010	(20 No
Flooring	91444	n	n	100 %	100 %

Form Title: LIST OF WORK MADE AVAILABLE Form:

AA61

Project Title: Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement - Three Locations (Rev. June 2011)

SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVED

Type of Job	NAICS CODES	Company Name	Selected (Y/N)	Bid Amount	DBE	Non-DBE	Explanation for not Selecting
NONE							
		-					
<u> </u>							

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

Form Title:SUMMARY OF BIDS RECEIVEDForm:AA62Project Title:Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

(Rev. June 2011)

38 | Page

,#

٠

Contractor Name	Contractor Address	How Located	Date of Contact	Contact Method	Task Description	Response (Yes/No)
Caron Construction	SAN Diago	MB04	11-9-12	FAX.	WOOD Flooring	NO
LT Construction	SAN Dielo	mbd4	11-9-12	FAX	WOOD Flooring	NO
Povidence Ventures	SAN Dreio	MBDA	11-9-12	FAX	WOOD FLODring	NO
Walker & Associates	SAN Diego	M304	11-9-12	FAX	una flooring	NO
tacility specialist	San Diego	MB04	11-9-12	FAX	wood Flooring	No
			ļ			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						
		•				
				ļ		
	·····					

DISADVANTAGE BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) GOOD FAITH EFFORT LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS SOLICITED

USE ADDITIONAL FORMS AS NECESSARY

Form Title:DBE GOOD FAITH EFFORT LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS SOLICITEDForm:AA63Project Title:Recreation Center Gymnasium Floor Replacement – Three Locations

(Rev. June 2011)